Agenda
Committee of the Whole
May 23, 2019 – Following Council
Council Chambers, Grey County Administration Building
1. Call to Order
2. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
3. Business Arising
a. PDR-CW-23-19 Niagara Escarpment Amendment – Sideroad 26/27 and the
associated closure of Simcoe Road 91 – Grey Highlands
That Report PDR-CW-23-19 which provides background information regarding
the closure of Simcoe Road 91 and proposed upgrades to Sideroad 26/27 in
Clearview Township be received for information.
4. Delegations
9:50 AM

Doug Dingeldein and George Powell
Closure of Simcoe Road 91

10:10 AM

Victoria Watson and Traci Smith, BDO
2018 County of Grey Financial Statements
That the Financial Statements for the year ending December 31, 2018
be received; and
That the Treasurer be hereby authorized to approve and sign the
Financial Statements.

5. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion
6. Consent Agenda
That the following Consent Agenda items be received; and
That staff be authorized to take the actions necessary to give effect to the
recommendations in the staff reports; and
That the correspondence be supported or received for information as
recommended in the consent agenda.

1

Committee of the Whole
May 23, 2019
Page 2

a. FR-CW-14-19 2018 Development Charges Reserve Fund Statement
That Report FR-CW-14-19 regarding the 2018 Development Charges Reserve
Fund Statement be received; and
That Council accepts the Treasurer’s declaration that the County is in
compliance with the reporting requirements of the Development Charges Act,
1997 and any additional reporting requirements identified by the Smart
Growth for our Communities Act, 2015 (Bill 73); and
That Report FR-CW-14-19 and related attachments be made available on the
County’s website or upon request.
b. Ontario Good Roads Association Correspondence dated April 29, 2019
That the Ontario Good Roads Association correspondence dated April 29,
2019 regarding the organizing of an annual Combined Conference with the
Rural Ontario Municipal Association be received for information.
c. Georgian College Correspondence dated May 8, 2019
That the Georgian College correspondence dated May 8, 2019 regarding Grey
County’s support of the Algoma Central Marine Emergency Duties Centre be
received for information.
d. Town of Hanover Correspondence dated May 13, 2019
That Town of Hanover correspondence dated May 13, 2019 regarding cuts to
Ontario Library Services be supported.
e. Town of Aurora Correspondence dated May 14, 2019
WHEREAS the legislation that abolished the OMB and replaced it with LPAT
received unanimous – all party support; and
WHEREAS all parties recognized that local governments should have the
authority to uphold their provincially approved Official Plans; to uphold their
community driven planning; and
WHEREAS Bill 108 will once again allow an unelected, unaccountable body
make decisions on how our communities evolve and grow; and
WHEREAS on August 21, 2018 Minister Clark once again signed the MOU with
the Association of Municipalities of Ontario and entered into “...a legally
binding agreement recognizing Ontario Municipalities as a mature,
accountable order of government.”; and
WHEREAS this MOU is “enshrined in law as part of the Municipal Act”. And
recognizes that as “...public policy issues are complex and thus require
coordinated responses...the Province endorses the principle of regular
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consultation between Ontario and municipalities in relation to matters of
mutual interest”; and
WHEREAS by signing this agreement, the Province made “...a commitment to
cooperating with its municipal governments in considering new legislation or
regulations that will have a municipal impact”; and
WHEREAS Bill 108 will impact 15 different Acts - Cannabis Control Act, 2017,
Conservation Authorities Act, Development Charges Act, Education Act,
Endangered Species Act, 2007, Environmental Assessment Act,
Environmental Protection Act, Labour Relations Act, 1995, Local Planning
Appeal Tribunal Act, 2017, Municipal Act, 2001, Occupational Health and
Safety Act, Ontario Heritage Act, Ontario Water Resources Act, Planning Act,
Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, 1997.
Now Therefore Be it Hereby Resolved That Grey County oppose Bill 108 which
in its current state will have negative consequences on community building
and proper planning; and
Be it further resolved that Grey County call upon the Government of Ontario to
halt the legislative advancement of Bill 108 to enable fulsome consultation
with Municipalities to ensure that its objectives for sound decision making for
housing growth that meets local needs will be reasonably achieved; and
Be It Further Resolved That a copy of this Motion be sent to the Honourable
Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario, The Honourable Christine Elliott, Deputy
Premier, the Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs, the
Honourable Andrea Horwath, Leader of the New Democratic Party, and all
MPPs in the Province of Ontario; and
Be It Further Resolved That a copy of this Motion be sent to the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) and all Ontario municipalities for their
consideration.
7. Items For Direction and Discussion
a. FR-CW-13-19 Provincial Budget – Impact on Funding for County of Grey
That Report FR-CW-13-19 be received for information; and
That upon receiving more complete information from the Province on program
funding levels and service guidelines impacting the County’s 2019 approved
budget and the 2020 budget, that staff prepare a further report, including
recommendations to address changes to funding and/or service delivery, for
consideration.
b. FR-CW-12-19 Health Care Funding
That Report FR-CW-12-19 regarding Health Care Funding be received; and
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That Council provide direction to staff on the development of a healthcare
capital policy and the appropriate level of funding to help guide future
healthcare capital funding requests; and
That Council provide staff with direction on the funding requests for the
Collingwood General and Marine Hospital and the Grey Bruce Health Services
MRI replacement.
c. PDR-CW-24-19 Grey County Comments on Bill 108
That Report PDR-CW-24-19 regarding an overview of the ‘Bill 108: More
Homes, More Choices Act’ be received; and
That Report PDR-CW-24-19 be forwarded onto the Province of Ontario as the
County of Grey’s comments on the proposed legislation posted on the
Environmental Registry through postings # 019-0016, 019-0017, and 019-0021;
and
That the Report be shared with member municipalities and conservation
authorities having jurisdiction within Grey County; and
That staff be authorized to proceed prior to County Council approval as per
Section 25.6(b) of Procedural By-law 5003-18.
d. PDR-CW-25-19 Recolour Grey – Draft Provincial Modifications
That Report PDR-CW-25-19 be received which provides a summary of the draft
modifications proposed by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs; and
That staff be directed to provide the comments outlined in the attached
‘Appendix A – Recolour Grey Provincial Modifications Chart’ to the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing staff for their consideration prior to issuing a
final decision; and
That staff be authorized to proceed prior to County Council approval as per
Section 25.6 (b) of Procedural By-law 5003-18.
e. HDR-CW-06-19 10 Year Housing and Homelessness Plan Year in Review
That report HDR-CW-06-19 Grey County Housing and Homelessness Plan –
2018 Annual Report be received.
f.

HDR-CW-07-19 Ontario’s Community Housing Renewal Strategy
That report HDR-CW-07-19 pertaining to Ontario’s Community Housing
Renewal Strategy be received.

g. PDR-CW-27-19 Power Transmission Line and Crossing Agreement on the CP Rail
Trail - Chatsworth
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That Report PDR-CW-27-19 regarding the development of an agreement with
Egerton Solar Power LP (directed by its General Partner, MPI FIT 4 Inc.) for the
purposes of allowing a portion of the County’s CP Rail Trail to be utilized for a
power transmission line and driveway crossing, to support the neighbouring
solar power facility be endorsed; and
That a by-law to adopt the Agreement be prepared for consideration by
County Council.
8. Other Business
9. Notice of Motion
10. Adjournment
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 9, 2019

Subject / Report No:

PDR-CW-23-19

Title:

Niagara Escarpment Amendment - Sideroad 26/27 and the
associated closure of Simcoe Road 91

Prepared by:

Randy Scherzer and Pat Hoy

Reviewed by:
Lower Tier(s) Affected: Grey Highlands
Status:

Report deferred to the May 23, 2019 Committee of the
Whole meeting as per Resolution CW106-19;

Recommendation
1.

That Report PDR-CW-23-19 which provides background information
regarding the closure of Simcoe Road 91 and proposed upgrades to
Sideroad 26/27 in Clearview Township be received for information.

Executive Summary
The County has received a Niagara Escarpment Amendment application that proposes
upgrades to Sideroad 26/27 in Clearview Township. The upgrades to Sideroad 26/27
have been triggered because of the future closure of a section of Simcoe Road 91
which connects with Grey Road 31. The closure of Simcoe Road 91 is based on an
arrangement made by Simcoe County, Clearview Township, and Walker Industries as
part of the expansion to the Duntroon Quarry in Clearview Township. Grey County
entered into an agreement with Clearview Township and Walker Industries in 2010
regarding the work to be undertaken on the portion of Sideroad 26/27. The purpose of
this report is to provide background information regarding the closure of Simcoe Road
91 and the proposed upgrades to Sideroad 26/27. Staff will be reviewing the proposed
Niagara Escarpment Amendment application and will be providing technical comments
to the Niagara Escarpment Commission prior to the comment deadline of May 31, 2019.

PDR-CW-23-19
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Background and Discussion
The County has received a proposed Niagara Escarpment Amendment (NEPA)
application that proposes upgrades to Sideroad 26/27 in Clearview Township. The
following is a link to the proposed application: Request for Comments – NEPA PS 215
18.
The upgrades to Sideroad 26/27 have been triggered as a result of the future closure of
a section of Simcoe Road 91 which connects with Grey Road 31. The closure of
Simcoe Road 91 is based on an arrangement made by Simcoe County, Clearview
Township and Walker Industries as part of the expansion to the Duntroon Quarry in
Clearview Township. It is the intent of Simcoe County, Clearview Township and Walker
Aggregates to complete the following:





Simcoe County will transfer Simcoe County Road 91 to Clearview Township
Clearview Township will sell the section of Simcoe Road 91 from Grey Road 31
to Concession 10 Nottawasaga
Clearview Township will upgrade Concession 10 Nottawasaga from Simcoe
Road 91 to Sideroad 30/31
Clearview Township will upgrade Sideroad 26/27 from a seasonally maintained
road to an all-season road to replace the County Road. This road will only be
surface treated when a 400 vehicle per day traffic volume count has been
achieved; Clearview Township will restrict large vehicles from using the road.

Grey County was involved in the review of the Duntroon Quarry expansion and
expressed an interest in the proposed closure of Simcoe Road 91 and the subsequent
upgrades to Sideroad 26/27. A report summarizing the County’s involvement with these
matters was presented back in 2014. The following is a link to that report: TR-TAPS-6314
In July 2010, Grey County entered into an agreement with Clearview Township and
Walker Industries regarding the work to be undertaken on the portion of Sideroad 26/27.
The following is a link to the agreement – Sideroad 26/27 Agreement – Clearview
Township, Walker Aggregates and County of Grey – By-law 4675-10.
This agreement states the following, once the Walker Aggregates permits and
applications for the Walker Aggregates quarry expansion have been approved:



Clearview Township will complete a traffic survey of Sideroad 26/27 annually
Two years after the issuance of the licence to Walker Aggregates, Clearview
Township will surface treat Sideroad 26/27 provided the traffic count is 400
vehicles per day, or in such year the traffic study substantiates the traffic volumes
are 400 vehicles per day

PDR-CW-23-19
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Clearview Township will adopt a by-law which would restrict truck traffic and load
restrictions on Sideroad 26/27 year-round

The Joint Board approved the Walker Aggregates Quarry Expansion in 2012. Since
that time, Clearview Township has been seeking the necessary approvals to move
forward with the upgrades to Sideroad 26/27. Clearview Township applied for a
development permit application to upgrade Sideroad 26/27 and that application was
refused by the NEC in November 2015 and has been appealed by Clearview Township.
During the appeal process, additional environmental work was undertaken by Clearview
Township which identified that the proposed road works would result in the removal of
1.2 hectares of natural heritage features and key hydrologic features within the existing
right of way. The Township requested an adjournment to the hearing on the
development permit application to apply for a Niagara Escarpment Amendment as the
policies of the NEP prohibit development in wetlands.
The upgrades to Sideroad 26/27 as proposed by Clearview Township in the Niagara
Escarpment Amendment application include the following:









Improving the vertical alignment;
Replacing road-crossing culverts to improve fish passage;
Improving and widening the road base;
Channel re-alignment to increase the current separation between the road and a
watercourse;
Tree removal;
Re-surfacing the road;
Ditch improvements; and,
Addressing environmental and road side safety measures such as drainage,
erosion and sedimentation issues.

Grey County staff will review the proposed Niagara Escarpment Amendment application
and provide technical comments to the Niagara Escarpment Commission. Grey County
staff will identify the agreed upon requirements for the upgrades to Sideroad 26/27 as
identified in the Agreement between Grey County, Clearview Township and Walker
Industries.
It is our understanding that Grey Highlands will be holding a public meeting on May 9th
to receive comments from the public which they will be submitting to the Niagara
Escarpment Commission. Clearview Township is also holding a Public Meeting on
Wednesday, May 8th from 5 to 7:30pm at the Township office in Stayner.

PDR-CW-23-19
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Legal and Legislated Requirements
Grey County, Clearview Township, and Walker Aggregates are bound to the terms in
the Agreement as adopted by By-law 4675-10.

Financial and Resource Implications
Clearview Township will be responsible for the costs associated with upgrading
Sideroad 26/27.

Relevant Consultation
☒

Internal (Transportation Services)

☒

External (Niagara Escarpment Commission)

Appendices and Attachments
Request for Comments – NEPA PS 215 18
TR-TAPS-63-14
Sideroad 26/27 Agreement – Clearview Township, Walker Aggregates and County of
Grey – By-law 4675-10
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COUNTY OF GREY
AUDIT FINAL REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
May 23, 2019

May 23, 2019

May 23, 2019

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited,
a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Audit Final Report for County of Grey

For the year ended December 31, 2018

SUMMARY
Our audit and therefore this report will not necessarily identify all matters that may be of interest to the Members of the Committee of the Whole in
fulfilling its responsibilities. This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Members of the Committee of the Whole and should not be distributed
without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibility to a third party that uses this communication.

Approval of Financial Statements

Audit Risks

As of the date of this report, we have substantially completed our audit of
the 2018 consolidated financial statements, pending completion of the
following items:


Receipt of outstanding legal confirmations



Subsequent events review through to financial statement approval date



Approval of consolidated financial statements by the Members of the
Committee of the Whole

Our audit strategy and procedures focused on the risks specific to your
organization and key accounts as outlined in our Planning Report to the
Members of the Corporate Services Committee. The significant risks of
material misstatement identified during our planning included the following
items:










We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable, not
absolute, assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement. See Appendix A for our Independent
Auditor’s Report.
The scope of the work performed was substantially the same as that
described in our Planning Report to the Members of the Committee of the
Whole dated March 14, 2019.

Control Environment
Purchases
Payroll
Revenue Recognition
Government Transfers
Commitments and Contingencies
Post-employment Benefits
Holdbacks Payable
Capital Assets

There were no changes to our planned procedures and no issues were
identified in our testing performed. No additional risks were identified during
the audit.
Audit findings are discussed in more detail on Page 4.

Materiality
As communicated to you in our Planning Report to the Members of the
Committee of the Whole, preliminary materiality was $2,500,000. Final
materiality remained unchanged from our preliminary assessment.
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Management Representations

Internal Control Matters

During the course of our audit, management made certain representations to
us. These representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or
they were implied through the consolidated financial statements.
Management provided representations in response to specific queries from
us, as well as unsolicited representations. Such representations were part of
the evidence gathered by us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on
which to base our audit opinion. These representations were documented by
including in the audit working papers memoranda of discussions with
management and written representations received from management.

We are required to report to you in writing, any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we have identified. The specifics of this communication
are included on Page 6. During the course of our audit we did not become
aware of any significant weaknesses in the design or implementation of
internal controls.

Independence

A summary of the representation we have requested from management is set
out in the representation letter included in Appendix C.

Our annual letter confirming our independence was previously provided to
you in our planning correspondence. We know of no circumstances that would
cause us to amend the previously provided letter. The letter is included in
Appendix B.

Fraud Discussion
Through our planning process, and current and prior years’ audits, we have
developed an understanding of your oversight processes. We are not currently
aware of any fraud.

Adjusted and Unadjusted Differences
All significant adjusted and unadjusted differences and disclosure omissions
identified through the course of our audit engagement are required to be
disclosed and discussed with Management. We did not identify any
unadjusted differences or disclosure omissions over the course of the audit.

If you are aware of changes to process or are aware of any instances of actual,
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the County, we request that you provide
us with this information.
Please refer to the Auditor’s Responsibilities for Detecting Fraud in the
Planning Report to the Members of the Committee of the Whole.
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AUDIT FINDINGS
As part of our ongoing communications with you, we are required to have a discussion on our views about significant qualitative aspects of the County's
accounting practices, including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.
Management is responsible for determining the County of Grey’s significant accounting policies. Significant accounting policies have been disclosed in
the financial statements. The choice between accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial position and results of the
County. The application of those policies often involves significant estimates and judgments by management. Based on the audit work that we have
performed, it is our opinion that the estimates are in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting policies and have been
consistently applied.
A summary of the key discussion points are as follows:

Significant Financial
Statement Disclosures
Accumulated Surplus

Audit Findings
A breakdown of the County’s accumulated surplus is included in Note 4. This includes the amount invested in capital assets,
unfunded liabilities, reserves and reserve funds and also the general surplus (deficit) which is required to be carried forward
to the next year’s budget.

Commitments

Significant commitments for Ontario Housing Debentures, operating agreements, as well as a capital grant are disclosed in Note
12.

Contingencies/Litigation
Proceedings

We have discussed with management and they have indicated there are outstanding claims against the County. We will also be
communicating with the County’s legal counsel. These claims are disclosed in Note 13.
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Significant Estimates
and Judgements
Post-Employment
Benefits

WSIB future benefit and
commitment

Taxation revenue
estimate

Liability for
Contaminated Sites

Government Transfers

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Audit Findings
The County provides post-employment health and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees. The benefits earned by
employees are determined using management’s best estimate of expected benefit costs and are expensed as services are
rendered. In order to help estimate the liability for post-employment benefits, the County engaged the services of an actuary.

As the County is an employer included under Schedule 2 of the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, it self-ensures the entire
risk of its own WSIB claims and it’s individually liable for reimbursing the WSIB for all costs relating to its workers WSIB claims.
In order to help estimate the liability for WSIB future benefits, the County engaged the services of an actuary.

In accordance with PS 3510, amounts have been estimated for taxable events that have occurred but have not yet been assessed.
The estimate was based on trend analysis by year for write-offs for the last 6 years, as well as communication with lower tier
municipalities.

Management compiled a list of all properties owned by the County or where the County has accepted responsibility for the
property and assessed whether each property was contaminated. Management is not aware of any contaminated sites therefore
no liability is accrued.

We reviewed agreements and discussed with management. We confirmed cash received and prepared a reconciliation of cash
flows and eligible expenditures. There were no issues noted that, in our opinion, are of significant importance to discuss with
those charged with governance.

15
5

Audit Final Report for County of Grey

For the year ended December 31, 2018

INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS
A significant deficiency is defined as a deficiency or combination of
deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment,
is of sufficient importance to merit the attention of those charged with
governance.

During the course of our audit, we performed the following procedures with
respect to the County’s internal control environment:


Documented operating systems to assess the design and implementation
of control activities that were relevant to the audit.



Discussed and considered potential audit risks with management.



Tested the operating effectiveness of controls in the payroll, purchase
and social services transaction stream.

As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on the County’s
consolidated financial statements, our audit cannot be expected to disclose
all matters that may be of interest to you. As part of our work, we considered
internal control relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements such that we were able to design appropriate audit procedures.
This work was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control.

The results of these procedures were considered in determining, the extent
and nature of substantive audit testing required.
We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in
internal control that we have identified during the audit.

During the course of our audit we did not become aware of any significant
weaknesses in the design or implementation of internal controls.
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BDO Canada LLP
1717 2nd Avenue E, Third Floor
PO Box 397
Owen Sound ON N4K 5P7 Canada

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of the Corporation of the County of Grey
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the
County of Grey (the County), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2018 and the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus,
statement of changes in net financial assets, and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the County as at December 31, 2018 and the consolidated
results of operations, consolidated changes in net financial assets and consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the County
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Other Matters
We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness
of the schedules on pages 29 and 30 of the County’s financial statements.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the County’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the County or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the County’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the County’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the County to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
County or business activities within the County to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Owen Sound, Ontario
May 23, 2019
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31
Financial assets
Cash and investments (Note 1)
Trade and other receivables
Inventory held for resale

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Vacation pay, post-employment benefits and
WSIB Schedule II liabilities (Note 11)
Deferred revenue (Page 28)
Net long-term liabilities (Note 2)

Net financial assets
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses
Tangible capital assets (Note 3)
Inventory of supplies

Accumulated surplus (Note 4)

2018

2017

$ 64,477,827
3,174,940
10,024

$ 57,084,235
3,080,701
11,473

67,662,791

60,176,409

16,289,339

10,485,315

7,619,250
11,316,965
4,493,973

7,661,908
9,883,345
1,600,000

39,719,527

29,630,568

27,943,264

30,545,841

26,766
201,217,731
1,269,853

40,939
183,721,051
1,070,647

202,514,350

184,832,637

$ 230,457,614

$ 215,378,478

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended December 31

Revenue
Taxation
Fees and user charges
Government transfers (Note 7)
Assumption of non-profit housing (Note 8)
Other income (Note 9)

2018
Budget
(Note 6)

2018
Actual

2017
Actual

$ 55,520,665
9,666,846
59,042,445
10,231,813

$ 55,557,664
10,189,431
60,519,460
5,009,255
9,181,798

$ 54,844,864
9,866,339
53,982,270
8,939,391

134,461,769

140,457,608

127,632,864

8,373,000
1,939,162
10,355,359
1,669,619
12,875,800
32,704,299
11,985,618
27,749,811
2,045,700
2,837,500

8,651,593
1,932,057
19,148,331
1,676,724
14,119,055
31,797,510
13,944,429
29,219,912
2,276,366
2,612,495

8,075,517
1,878,213
22,092,066
1,853,813
13,482,447
28,974,300
13,810,488
28,153,359
2,278,232
2,723,068

112,535,868

125,378,472

123,321,503

21,925,901

15,079,136

4,311,361

215,378,478

215,378,478

211,067,117

$ 237,304,379

$ 230,457,614

$ 215,378,478

Expenses
General government
Provincial offences
Transportation services
Health unit
Paramedic services
Social services
Social housing
Long-term care
Grey Roots
Planning and development

Annual surplus (Note 6)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of the year
Accumulated surplus, end of the year

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 31

Annual surplus (Page 6)

$

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets

Change in prepaid expenses
Change in inventory of supplies

2018
Budget
(Note 6)

2018
Actual

21,925,901

$15,079,136

2017
Actual
$

4,311,361

(27,123,969)
-

(28,853,630)
10,171,642
825,785
359,523

(23,038,942)
13,169,465
(74,064)
392,237

(27,123,969)

(17,496,680)

(9,551,304)

-

14,173
(199,206)

157,027
139,178

-

(185,033)

296,205

Decrease in net financial assets

(5,198,068)

(2,602,577)

(4,943,738)

Net financial assets, beginning of the year

30,545,841

30,545,841

35,489,579

25,347,773

$27,943,264

$ 30,545,841

Net financial assets, end of the year

$

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31

2018

2017

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Annual surplus
Items not involving cash
Vacation pay, post-employment benefits
and WSIB Schedule II liabilities
Amortization
Contributed capital assets
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assets
Deferred revenue recognized

$ 15,079,136

Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Trade and other receivables
Inventory held for resale
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Inventory of supplies
Deferred revenue received

$

4,311,361

(42,658)
10,171,642
(6,293,816)
825,785
(6,718,700)

(604,076)
13,169,465
(76,820)
(74,064)
(5,770,785)

13,021,389

10,955,081

(94,239)
1,449
14,173
5,804,024
(199,206)
8,152,320

Capital transactions
Cash used to acquire capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets

Financing activities
Additions to long-term liabilities
Repayment of long-term liabilities

Net change in cash and temporary investments
Cash and temporary investments, beginning of the year
Cash and temporary investments, end of the year

(630,675)
(335)
157,027
1,539,628
139,178
8,274,665

26,699,910

20,434,569

(22,559,814)
359,523

(22,962,122)
392,237

(22,200,291)

(22,569,885)

3,365,378
(471,405)

(400,000)

2,893,973

(400,000)

7,393,592

(2,535,316)

57,084,235

59,619,551

$ 64,477,827

$ 57,084,235

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
December 31, 2018
Management Responsibility

The management of the Corporation of the County of Grey
has prepared and is responsible for the integrity, objectivity
and accuracy of the financial information presented in these
consolidated financial statements. The Committee of the
Whole reviews and approves the consolidated financial
statements before they are submitted to Council.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of
the County of Grey have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards established by
the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants as prescribed by the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing.
Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes
revenues as they become available and measurable; expenses
are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a
result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a
legal obligation to pay.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. By their nature, these
estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and actual
results could differ from management's best estimates as
additional information becomes available in the future.
Estimates are used when accounting for items such as
accrued liabilities, useful lives of capital assets, postemployment and WSIB future benefit liabilities and taxation
revenue.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated statements reflect the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of all municipal organizations,
committees, and boards which are owned or controlled by
Council. All interfund assets and liabilities and revenues and
expenses have been eliminated on consolidation.
The following boards and municipal enterprises owned or
controlled by Council have been consolidated:
Grey County and Owen Sound Housing Corporation
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
December 31, 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into cash.

Investments

Investments are recorded at cost unless there has been a
decline in the market value which is other than temporary in
nature in which case the investments are written down to
market value.

Inventory

Inventory of goods held for resale is recorded at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the
average cost basis.
Inventory of supplies is recorded at the lower of cost and
replacement cost.

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible capital and other non-financial assets are accounted
for as assets by the organization because they can be used to
provide services in future periods. These assets do not
normally provide resources to discharge the liabilities of the
organization unless they are sold.

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization. Cost includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or
betterment of the asset. Amortization is provided over the
estimated useful life of the assets, using the straight-line
method. The useful life of the assets is based on estimates
made by management. The following rates are used:
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Roads
Traffic signals
Bridges
Culverts
Vehicles

20 to 25 years
15 to 75 years
5 to 50 years
7 to 75 years
25 years
15 to 75 years
40 to 75 years
3 to 40 years

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded
at fair value at the date of receipt and also are recorded as
revenue.
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, art and historic treasures, are not
recognized in these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
December 31, 2018
Post-Employment Benefits

The County provides post-employment health, dental, life
insurance and other benefits to eligible retired employees.
The benefits earned by employees are determined using
management's best estimate of expected benefit costs and
are expensed as services are rendered.
The County is an employer under Schedule 2 of the Workplace
Safety and Insurance Act (WSIB). As such, it self-insures the
entire risk of its own WSIB claims and is individually liable for
reimbursing WSIB for all costs relating to workers' WSIB
claims. The cost of the claims are determined using
management's best estimates and are expensed as incidents
occur. The County of Grey, in order to reduce this risk as a
Schedule 2 employer, has purchased Occupational Accident
and Excess Indemnity Insurance to assist with work related
death or permanent impairments.
The contributions to Ontario Municipal Employers Retirement
System ("OMERS"), a multi-employer defined benefit plan, are
expensed when contributions are due.

Liability for Contaminated Sites

A contaminated site is a site at which substances occur in
concentrations that exceed the maximum acceptable
amounts under an environmental standard. Sites that are
currently in productive use are only considered a
contaminated site if an unexpected event results in
contamination. A liability for remediation of contaminated
sites is recognized when the organization is directly
responsible or accepts responsibility; it is expected that
future economic benefits will be given up; and a reasonable
estimate of the amount can be made. The liability includes
all costs directly attributable to remediation activities
including post remediation operations, maintenance and
monitoring. The liability is recorded net of any expected
recoveries. Management has not identified any contaminated
sites for which a liability needs to be recognized.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
December 31, 2018
Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized as follows:
a)

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they
meet the definition of an asset, have been authorized
and the taxable event occurs. For property taxes, the
taxable event is the period for which the tax is levied.

b)

Fines and donations are recognized when collected.

c)

Other revenues are recorded upon sale of goods or
provision of service when collection is reasonably
assured.

d)

Revenue restricted by legislation, regulation or
agreement and not available for general municipal
purposes, is reported as deferred revenue on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
revenue is reported on the consolidated statement of
operations and accumulated surplus in the year in which
it is used for the specified purpose.

e)

Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the
financial statement when the transfer is authorized and
any eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that
transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets
the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as
deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to
a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in the
statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are
settled.

Provincial Subsidies

Subsidies from the Province of Ontario are subject to review
of year-end settlement forms and adjustments by the
Province. Adjustments to funding, if any, are recorded in the
year in which they occur.

Trust Funds

Funds held in trust by the municipality, and their related
operations, are not included in these financial statements.
The financial activity and position of the trust funds are
reported separately on the trust funds statement of
continuity and balance sheet.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
1.

Cash and Investments
Unrestricted

2018

2017

$ 64,477,827

$ 57,084,235

A cash balance of $21,930,910 is being held in one bank account earning interest at a rate
of prime less 1.75%. Other cash balances totalling $10,567,734 and investment deposits of
$17,149,315 are also held at the same financial institution. The Canadian Deposit Insurance
Corporation insures up to a maximum of $100,000 per depositor per financial institution.
Investment deposits of $12,562,652 are also held at other financial institutions.
Investments included in the balance above consists of:
2018
Bond Fund
Term Deposits 2.27% to 2.42% (2017 - 1.53% to 1.58%)
Guaranteed Investment Certificates
1.90% to 3.07% (2017 - 1.15% to 2.20%)
Membership share

$

3,357,151
17,149,315

2017
$

4,158,603
20,179,707

11,224,185
1

8,172,701
1

$ 31,730,652

$ 32,511,012

Investments have a market value of $31,730,652 (2017 - $32,351,765) at the end of the
year.
The County of Grey has deposits held in an Ontario credit union of $2,224,172 (2017 $2,172,701). The Deposit Insurance Corporation of Ontario (DICO) insures deposits to a
maximum of $250,000 per depositor.
The County of Grey has a demand operating facility agreement with a financial institution
at prime less 0.5%. At December 31, 2018, the County of Grey had a $6,000,000 unused
credit facility.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
2.

Long-Term Liabilities
The balance of long-term liabilities reported on the consolidated statement of financial
position is made up of the following:
2018
2017
Georgian College Marine Emergency Duties
Training and Research Centre, payable in
equal instalments of $200,000 from 2015
to 2024

$ 1,200,000

Grey Bruce Health Services, payable in
equal instalments of $200,000 from 2014
to 2018

-

200,000

Scotiabank, 1.995%, blended monthly
instalments of $36,224, due 2021

3,181,877

-

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation,
1.01%, mortgage payable in blended
monthly instalments of $4,923, due 2020

112,096

-

$

4,493,973

$

$

1,400,000

1,600,000

Principal payments for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

633,095
636,267
2,624,611
200,000
200,000
200,000

$

4,493,973

Interest of $10,689 (2017 - $NIL) was paid during the year on long-term liabilities.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31
3.

Tangible Capital Assets
2018
Land and Land
Improvements

Cost, beginning of the year

$

Additions

$

701,678

Disposals
Accumulated amortization,
beginning of the year

34

Amortization
Disposals

12,648,638

Bridges and
Culverts

Roads
$

1,769,876
(439,426)

266,100,363

$

40,190,488

13,852,760

382,753

(2,293,176)

(71,567)

Vehicles
$

9,048,539

Total
$

1,583,002

437,739,002
28,853,630

(223,862)

(3,878,501)

3,444,029

116,721,714

13,979,088

277,659,947

40,501,674

10,407,679

462,714,131

1,066,836

51,543,201

7,834,840

162,366,095

25,819,568

5,387,411

254,017,951

85,274

2,229,996

792,870

5,942,659

423,608

697,235

10,171,642

(382,874)

(1,815,954)

(71,567)

(186,168)

(2,693,193)

(236,630)

1,152,110
$

$

(850,470)

-

Accumulated amortization,
end of the year

107,008,623
10,563,561

-

Cost, end of the year

Net carrying amount, end of
the year

2,742,351

Machinery &
Equipment

Buildings

2,291,919

53,536,567
$

63,185,147

8,244,836
$

5,734,252

166,492,800
$

111,167,147

26,171,609
$

14,330,065

5,898,478
$

4,509,201

261,496,400
$

201,217,731
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31
3.

Tangible Capital Assets - (continued)
2017
Land and Land
Improvements

Cost, beginning of the year

$

Additions

$

-

Disposals
Accumulated amortization,
beginning of the year
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Amortization
Disposals

12,118,479

$

1,100,906

(40,546)

261,779,195

$

8,019,782

(570,747)

38,462,411

Vehicles
$

1,824,724

(3,698,614)

9,207,071

Total
$

1,204,342

(96,647)

420,469,488
23,038,942

(1,362,874)

(5,769,428)

107,008,623

12,648,638

266,100,363

40,190,488

9,048,539

437,739,002

995,665

48,966,229

7,315,581

157,995,313

25,214,723

5,812,230

246,299,741

71,171

2,613,312

997,560

7,944,967

701,492

840,963

13,169,465

(478,301)

(3,574,185)

(96,647)

(36,340)

1,066,836
$

$

Bridges and
Culverts

Roads

2,742,351

-

Accumulated amortization,
end of the year

96,159,981
10,889,188

-

Cost, end of the year

Net carrying amount, end of
the year

2,742,351

Machinery &
Equipment

Buildings

1,675,515

51,543,201
$

55,465,422

7,834,840
$

4,813,798

162,366,095
$

103,734,268

(1,265,782)

25,819,568
$

14,370,920

(5,451,255)

5,387,411
$

3,661,128

254,017,951
$

183,721,051
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
3.

Tangible Capital Assets - (continued)
The net book value of tangible capital assets not being amortized because they are under
construction is $1,867,559 (2017 - $11,867,925).
In 2018, $6,293,816 (2017 - $76,820) in contributed capital assets were recognized in the
financial statements during the year.
The municipality holds various works of art and historical treasures. These items are not
recognized as tangible capital assets in the financial statements because a reasonable
estimate of the future benefits associated with such property cannot be made.
The County of Grey has recorded land, machinery and equipment assets at nominal amounts
when historical or replacement cost was not available.
No interest was capitalized to tangible capital assets during the current year or previous
year.
During the year, the County updated their tangible capital asset policy to better reflect the
estimated useful lives of their tangible capital assets. This change in policy has been
applied prospectively as a change in accounting estimate and has resulted in an decrease in
amortization in the current year of approximately $3,600,000.

4.

Accumulated Surplus
Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows:
2018
Invested in tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets purchased
Unfinanced capital assets
Capital assets financed by long-term liabilities
and to be funded in future years
Total invested in capital assets

$ 201,217,731 $ 183,721,051
(8,607,784)
(7,295,143)
(3,293,973)
189,315,974

Unfunded post-employment benefits
Unfunded commitment to Grey Bruce Health Services
Unfunded commitment to Georgian College
Other surplus

Reserves (Note 5)
Accumulated surplus

36

2017

(7,040,495)
(1,200,000)
1,269,853

176,425,908
(7,071,121)
(200,000)
(1,400,000)
1,070,647

182,345,332

168,825,434

48,112,282

46,553,044

$ 230,457,614

$ 215,378,478
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
5.

Reserves Set Aside for Specific Purpose by Council
2018
Working funds
Insurance, sick leave and WSIB
Current purposes
Capital purposes

$

1,930,799
3,136,183
11,354,074
31,691,226

$ 48,112,282

6.

2017
$

1,930,799
3,084,428
9,519,037
32,018,780

$ 46,553,044

Budgets
Under Canadian Public sector accounting principles, budget amounts are to be reported on
the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus and changes in net
financial assets for comparative purposes. The 2018 budget amounts for the Corporation of
the County of Grey approved by Council have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation of the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus and
changes in net financial assets. The following is a reconciliation of the budget approved by
Council.
2018
Budget
Annual surplus (Page 6)

$

21,925,901 $ 15,079,136

Transfers to reserves
Transfers from reserves
Capital acquisitions, disposals
and write-down
Amortization
Proceeds from long-term debt
Debt principal repayments
Change in unfunded liabilities
Change in long-term commitments
Change in other surplus

Change in unfinanced capital
$

37

2018
Actual

2017
Actual
$

4,311,361

(4,382,582)
9,980,650

(8,683,362)
7,124,124

(7,124,857)
6,703,759

(27,123,969)
(400,000)
-

(27,668,322)
10,171,642
3,365,378
(71,405)
(30,626)
(400,000)
(199,206)

(22,720,769)
13,169,465
(593,777)
(400,000)
139,178

-

(1,312,641)

(6,515,640)

-

1,312,641

6,515,640

-$

-

$

-
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
7.

Government Transfers
2018
Budget
Operating
Province of Ontario
Paramedic services
Social services
Social housing
Long-term care
Other

$

Government of Canada
Social housing
Federal Gas Tax - other
Other

Other municipalities
Transportation services
Other

Total operating transfers
Capital
Province of Ontario
Transportation services
Social and Family Services
Social Housing

Government of Canada
Federal Gas Tax - Transportation
Federal Gas Tax - Social Housing
Other

Other municipalities
Transportation services
Total capital transfers
Total government transfers

2018
Actual

7,252,200 $ 7,500,492
27,349,477
26,920,854
2,255,226
2,566,833
16,378,185
16,623,832
104,900
312,009

2017
Actual
$

7,186,774
24,150,271
2,126,519
15,883,824
98,759

53,339,988

53,924,020

49,446,147

635,370
13,500
40,000

635,370
57,305
-

635,370
57,569
48,451

688,870

692,675

741,390

1,112,200
34,850

394,021
42,237

239,059
48,957

1,147,050

436,258

288,016

55,175,908

55,052,953

50,475,553

1,066,537
-

1,056,711
246,512
228,772

613,059
530,048

1,066,537

1,531,995

1,143,107

2,800,000
-

3,456,080
42,906

2,059,094
304,516
-

2,800,000

3,498,986

2,363,610

-

435,526

-

3,866,537

5,466,507

3,506,717

$ 59,042,445 $ 60,519,460

$ 53,982,270
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
8.

Assumption of non-profit housing

The County of Grey acts as the service manager to the not-for-profit organization Golden Town
Residential Community Inc. (Golden Town). Golden Town provides and operates non-profit
residential accommodation and incidental facilities primarily for persons of low income, senior
citizens and disabled persons primarily of low or modest income in Meaford Ontario.
During the year, the County of Grey (the County) entered into an agreement with Golden Town
to acquire all assets including properties known as Golden Town Manor, Albert Place, and
Victoria Village located in the Municipality of Meaford, cash, accounts receivable, investments,
furniture, equipment, fixtures, and prepaid expenses in exchange for the assumption of Golden
Town's mortgages and accounts payable.
Golden Town discontinued operations on September 28, 2018 and the County assumed the
operating activities on September 29, 2018. On October 4, 2018 the properties vested and the
mortgages were assumed by the County.
Costs incurred relating to restructuring consist of legal fees.
Details of assets and liabilities assumed as follows:
2018
Cash
Long-term debt
Tangible capital assets

9.

$

2,070,970
(3,355,530)
6,293,815

$

5,009,255

Other Income

Provincial Offences (POA)
Investment income, penalties and interest
Licenses, permits and rents
Donations
Development charges
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Contributed assets
Other

$

2018
Budget

2018
Actual

2,210,000 $
593,079
3,782,498
23,500
3,422,975
173,761
26,000

2,281,651 $
876,585
4,014,981
87,057
2,606,404
(825,785)
140,905

2,179,489
500,094
3,834,869
67,261
2,098,323
74,064
76,820
108,471

9,181,798 $

8,939,391

$ 10,231,813 $

39

2017
Actual
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
10. Pension Agreements
The municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of 715 members of its staff. This plan is
a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received
by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. Employees and employers
contribute jointly to the plan. The amount contributed to OMERS by the County for 2018
was $3,528,564 (2017 - $3,549,135). The contribution rate for 2018 was 9.0% to 14.6%
depending on age and income level (2017 - 9.0% to 14.6%).
OMERS is a multi-employer plan, therefore, any pension plan surpluses or deficits are a joint
responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the
municipality does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit. The last
available report for the OMERS plan was on December 31, 2018. At that time the plan
reported a $4.19 billion actuarial deficit (2017 - $5.40 billion actuarial deficit), based on
actuarial liabilities of $99.06 billion (2017 - $93.61 billion) and actuarial assets of $94.87
billion (2017 - $88.21 billion). Ongoing adequacy of the current contribution rates will need
to be monitored as fluctuations in financial markets may lead to increased future funding
requirements.

11.

Post-Employment Benefits
2018
WSIB
Vacation pay liability
Post-employment benefits
Other

a)

2017

$ 2,383,913
1,729,492
3,459,062
46,783

$

2,446,567
1,877,458
3,279,068
58,815

$ 7,619,250

$

7,661,908

The County is a Schedule II employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act. As
a Schedule II employer the County assumes liability for any award made under the Act.
An actuarial valuation performed at December 31, 2018 has calculated the liability to
be $2,383,913. The actuarial valuation was based on a number of assumptions such as,
discount rates and WSIB payment rates. The assumptions used reflect management's
best estimates. The WSIB benefit liability was determined using a discount rate of
3.30% and a WSIB administration rate of 25%. The current year recovery is $62,654 and
prior year recovery was $292,488. At December 31, 2018, the County provided
$3,036,599 in a reserve to offset this liability.

b)

The vacation year for an employee begins either on their "start date" anniversary or the
date defined by the applicable union contract. The vacation liability includes all carryforward amounts from the previous vacation year and vacation earned from the
vacation year start date to December 31, 2018.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
11.

Post-Employment Benefits
c)

The County pays certain life insurance, health and dental benefits on behalf of its
retired employees. The County recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in
which the employees render the services.
Actuarial valuations for accounting purposes are performed using the projected benefit
method. The most recent actuarial report was prepared as at December 31, 2016.
The assumptions used reflect management's best estimates. The post-employment
benefit liability was determined using a discount rate of 4%. For dental, travel and
vision premiums, a 4% annual rate of increase was assumed for 2015 and forward. For
health care premiums, a 6.25% increase was used for 2016 and a decreasing rate used
until 2026 where 4% was used thereafter.
2018

2017

Retirement benefit expense
Interest costs

$

204,876
86,472

$

200,890
81,787

Total expense for the year

$

291,348

$

282,677
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
12. Contractual Commitments
(a)

As part of the Provincial Local Services Realignment Program, the Ontario Housing
Corporation (OHC) remains responsible for the servicing of the debentures used to
finance the public housing projects transferred to the Grey County and Owen Sound
Housing Corporation under the authority of the Social Housing Reform Act, 2000.
Information received from OHC as at December 31, 2018 indicates the following:
Principal payments on debentures during the year
Interest payments on debentures during the year

$

463,868
189,892

Total

$

653,760

Debentures outstanding at year-end

$

2,620,501

The principal and interest payments are recovered at source from Federal Social
Housing funding provided from the Province and the balance is flowed to or
recovered from the Consolidated Municipal Services Manager (County of Grey). The
net amount recovered from the County of Grey in 2018 was $240,529 (2017 $248,149) and is recorded on the statement of operations as a transfer to the
Province.
(b)

The County of Grey has approved a capital grant of land and money in the amount of
$1,000,000 to the Centre Grey Health Services Foundation for the Centre Grey
General Hospital Building Fund. The amount of money to be paid will be determined
by deducting the value of the lands and will be paid in ten equal instalments
contingent upon the approval of funding for completion of the Centre Grey Hospital
by the Province of Ontario. Payments will be processed once construction begins. The
County has transferred $785,159 to reserves towards this commitment.

(c)

The County of Grey has been allocated funding for Affordable Housing projects under
the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program and Delivering Opportunities for
Ontario Renters Program. These funds are being used to create new housing units
within the County. A total of $8,616,349 has been committed to developers in order
to complete these units with $5,181,466 released as of December 31, 2018. If the
units remain as affordable housing units for a period of 25 years, no amount will be
repayable.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
13. Contingencies
(a)

The County of Grey along with the County of Bruce, the Province of Ontario, the
Dominion of Canada and several lower tier municipalities have been named as
defendants in a land claim action filed by the Chippewas of Saugeen and Nawash, for
damages alleged to total $92,000,000,000. No breakdown as to each municipality's
relative share of the $92,000,000,000 has been provided. The likelihood of the
success of this action is undeterminable at the present time.

(b)

The County has been served with various claims as a result of motor vehicle accidents
and other incidents. The outcomes of these claims are not determinable at this time.

(c)

The County insured errors and omissions and public liability insurance coverage
through the Ontario Municipal Insurance Exchange (OMEX) up until December 31,
2008. OMEX is a separate pooling of the public liability insurance risks of its municipal
members. All members are subject to assessment for losses, if any, experienced for
the years in which they were members.

14. Trust Funds
The trust funds administered by the municipality amounting to $49,313 (2017 - $55,615)
have not been included in the consolidated statement of financial position nor have the
operations been included in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated
surplus.

15. Provincial Offences
Revenue is recognized on a cash basis for fines levied during the year. The gross revenues
collected for the County of Grey for the year ended December 31, 2018 were $2,025,285
(2017 - $2,009,867). Net revenues after deduction of operating expenses were $450,618
(2017 - $396,115).
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
16. Segmented Information
The County of Grey is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide
range of services to its citizens. Distinguishable functional segments have been separately
disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the segments and the activities they
encompass are as follows:
Corporate Services
Corporate Services encompasses the budgets of Council, Corporate Administration,
Emergency Management, Assessment, Provincial Offences, County Property, the Grey Bruce
Health Unit and Education & Healthcare Initiatives. In addition, this also includes the
taxation budget, which includes supplementary tax and tax write-offs, as well as the
Federal Gas Tax Funding.
Planning and Community Development
Planning and Community Development encompasses Planning (including civic addressing),
Heritage, Agriculture, Forestry, Trails, Tourism and Economic Development mandates.
Social Services
Social Services encompasses the Social Services, Housing and Long-Term Care departments.
Social Services includes Social Assistance, Administration, Ontario Works and Child Care.
Housing covers operational and capital budgets for Grey County Housing, subsidies provided
to Non-Profit Housing Providers and the Affordable Housing Programs. The Long-Term Care
component refers to the three Long-Term Care facilities (Grey Gables - Markdale, Rockwood
Terrace - Durham and Lee Manor - Owen Sound) that are owned and operated by the County
of Grey.
Transportation and Public Safety
Transportation and Public Safety encompasses the Paramedic Services and Transportation
Services departments (with Transportation Services responsible for providing a safe
transportation network).
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31
Planning and
Community
Development

Corporate
Services
Revenue
Taxation
Fees and user charges
Specific grants
Assumption of non-profit housing
Other revenue

$

45

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Interest on debt
Materials and supplies
Contracted services
Other transfers
Rents and financial expenses
Amortization

Annual surplus

$

9,698,079
175,400
19,641
2,600,273

$

4,452,904
494,331
427,751
100,193

Social Services,
Housing and LongTerm Care
$

17,188,479
9,113,718
47,229,238
5,009,255
4,109,392

Transportation and
Public Safety
$

24,218,202
405,982
12,842,830
2,371,940

2018
Total
$

55,557,664
10,189,431
60,519,460
5,009,255
9,181,798

12,493,393

5,475,179

82,650,082

39,838,954

140,457,608

4,696,017
1,308,000
3,049,947
2,393,605
419,068
393,737

2,785,949
979,941
484,847
369,319
36,927
231,879

30,117,544
47,028
5,574,636
6,886,778
29,650,027
665,592
2,020,247

16,878,073
4,342,439
3,678,439
10,864
831,790
7,525,779

54,477,583
47,028
12,205,016
14,100,011
32,423,815
1,953,377
10,171,642

12,260,374

4,888,862

74,961,852

33,267,384

125,378,472

233,019

$

586,317

$

7,688,230

$

6,571,570

$

15,079,136
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31
Planning and
Community
Development

Corporate
Services
Revenue
Taxation
Fees and user charges
Specific grants
Other revenue

$

46

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Interest on debt
Materials and supplies
Contracted services
Other transfers
Rents and financial expenses
Amortization

Annual surplus (deficit)

$

9,710,514
52,691
67,081
2,742,318

$

4,273,313
327,086
165,655
156,955

Social Services,
Housing and LongTerm Care
$

17,086,552
9,100,462
43,651,548
3,905,383

Transportation and
Public Safety
$

23,774,485
386,100
10,097,986
2,134,735

2017
Total
$

54,844,864
9,866,339
53,982,270
8,939,391

12,572,604

4,923,009

73,743,945

36,393,306

127,632,864

4,795,647
1,059,776
2,824,643
2,563,181
473,432
90,864

2,444,116
948,851
519,823
736,755
42,503
309,252

28,991,301
32,622
5,373,469
5,656,207
27,425,952
706,185
2,752,411

16,220,804
4,761,468
3,394,339
19,475
1,161,489
10,016,938

52,451,868
32,622
12,143,564
12,395,012
30,745,363
2,383,609
13,169,465

11,807,543

5,001,300

70,938,147

35,574,513

123,321,503

765,061

$

(78,291) $

2,805,798

$

818,793

$

4,311,361

27

The Corporation of the County of Grey
Schedule of Deferred Revenue
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Opening

Contributions
Received

Investment
Income

Revenue
Recognized

Obligatory Reserve Funds
Development charges
$ 6,408,480
Federal gas tax
3,034,313

$ 3,853,642
2,948,379

$

148,996
58,898

$(2,606,404)
(3,456,080)

$7,804,714
2,585,510

9,442,793

6,802,021

207,894

(6,062,484)

10,390,224

15,527
47,836

-

-

(15,527)
(47,836)

-

183,681

104,112

-

(174,040)

113,753

143,000

188,285
352,000
70,027

-

(7,660)
-

180,625
352,000
213,027

43,848

255,797

-

(249,797)

49,848

6,660

172,184
-

-

(155,862)
(5,494)

16,322
1,166

440,552

1,142,405

-

(656,216)

926,741

$ 9,883,345

$ 7,944,426

Other
Social Services
Paramedicine program
Housing Allowance
and Build program
Housing Apartment
Approvement Program
Social Infrastructure Fund
Aggregate Fund
Affordable housing
Affordable housing
Business Enterprise
Centre
Miscellaneous

47

$

207,894

Ending

$(6,718,700) $11,316,965
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Grey Roots - Museum
Statement of Operations
(Unaudited)
For the year ended December 31

2018

Revenue
Province of Ontario
Canada
County of Grey
Donations
Donation in kind
Admissions and sales
Transfer from County of Grey reserves
Sale of assets

$

63,534
50,506
1,542,702
18,476
8,389
156,457
14,000
3,618

Expenditures
Advertising
Donation in kind
Supplies, postage and telephone
Payments to other organizations
Professional
Purchases for resale
Occupancy
Special events
Salaries and benefits
Travel and convention fees
Vehicle operations and licensing
Transfer to County of Grey reserve

2017
$

1,857,682

1,850,741

78,111
8,389
59,982
486
8,689
5,510
286,803
140,581
1,153,117
15,133
2,813
96,589

67,737
49,272
49,612
486
14,596
8,341
288,426
119,032
1,062,344
17,379
1,746
152,407

1,856,203

1,831,378

Change in unfinanced liabilities

(9,869)

(21,405)

1,866,072
Net revenue for the year

$

48

68,680
34,415
1,548,990
6,508
49,272
136,875
6,001

(8,390)

1,852,783
$

(2,042)
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County of Grey - Provincial Offences
Statement of Operations
(Unaudited)
For the year ended December 31
Revenue
Fines
Province of Ontario
Investment income
Transcripts
Cost recoveries

2018

2017

$ 2,025,285
241,046
1,394
5,754
94

$ 2,009,867
169,622
861
5,761
17

2,273,573

2,186,128

489,270
286,936
353,359
25,608
349,517
318,265

493,651
284,085
352,881
38,004
345,145
276,247

1,822,955

1,790,013

450,618

396,115

63,690

(55,934)

Expenditures
Salaries and benefits
Administrative charges
Victim fine surcharge
Dedicated fines
Prosecution expenses
Transfers to County of Bruce

Net revenue before transfer to reserves
Transfer to (from) reserve
Net revenue for the year

$

49

386,928

$

452,049
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Tel: 519 376 6110
Fax: 519 376 4741
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
1717 2nd Avenue E, Third Floor
PO Box 397
Owen Sound ON N4K 5P7 Canada

May 23, 2019
Members of the Committee of the Whole
County of Grey
595 – 9th Avenue East Owen Sound ON N4K 3E3
Dear Members of the Committee of the Whole:
We have been engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of County of Grey (the
“County”) for the year ended December 31, 2018.
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require that we communicate at least
annually with you regarding all relationships between the County and our Firm that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules
and related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate provincial institute/order and applicable
legislation, covering such matters as:
x

Holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly in a client;

x

Holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

x

Personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client;

x

Economic dependence on a client; and

x

Provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding
independence matters arising since March 14, 2019, the date of our last letter.
We are aware of the following relationships between the County and our Firm that, in our
professional judgment may reasonably be thought to bear on independence that have occurred
from March 14, 2019 to May 23, 2019.
We provided assistance in the preparation of the financial statements. These services created a
self-review threat to our independence since we subsequently expressed an opinion on whether
the financial statements presented fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the County in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards.
We, therefore, required the following safeguards be put in place related to the above:
x

Management created the source data for all the accounting entries

x

Management reviewed advice and comments provided and undertook their own analysis
considering the County’s circumstances and generally accepted accounting principles.

x

Management reviewed and approved all journal entries prepared by us, as well as changes
to financial statement presentation and disclosure.

x

Someone other than the preparer reviewed the proposed journal entries and financial
statements.

51

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the County within the meaning of the
Code of Professional Conduct of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario as of May 23,
2019.
This letter is intended solely for the use of the Members of the Committee of the Whole,
management and others within the County and should not be used for any other purposes.
Yours truly,

Traci Smith, CPA, CGA, LPA
Partner
BDO & Company LLP*
*BDO & Company LLP provides accounting, assurance, tax and other professional advisory services to BDO Canada LLP,
Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
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County of Grey
595 - 9th Avenue East
Owen Sound ON N4K 3E3
May 13, 2019
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
1717 2nd Avenue East, 3rd Floor
PO Box 397
Owen Sound ON N4K 5P7
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of County
of Grey for the year ended December 31, 2018, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether
the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements


We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated
March 4, 2019, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards; in particular, the financial statements are fairly presented
in accordance therewith.



However, the
following used
departures
Canadian
publicestimates,
sector accounting
have at
Significant
assumptions
by us infrom
making
accounting
includingstandards
those measured
occurred
been reported in the independent practitioner’s review engagement
fair
value,and
are have
reasonable.
report:
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed
Click "List the
to add of
content
in accordance
withdepartures"
the requirements
Canadian public sector accounting standards.




All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Canadian public
sector accounting standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.



The financial statements of the entity use appropriate accounting policies that have been
properly disclosed and consistently applied.



Thehave
effects
of uncorrected
misstatements
are immaterial,
bothbyindividually
and induring
the
We
reviewed
and approved
all journal entries
recommended
the practitioners
aggregate,
to
the
financial
statements
as
a
whole.
A
list
of
the
uncorrected
misstatements
the review.
is attached to the representation letter.

Information Provided


We have provided you with:
 access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;
 additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and
 unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.



We are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls to
prevent, detect and correct fraud and error, and have communicated to you all deficiencies in
internal control of which we are aware.



All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.
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We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial
statements.



We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.



The minute books of the municipality are a complete record of all meetings and resolutions of
Council throughout the year and to the present date.



We have disclosed to you all significant matters contained in the minutes of all meetings and
resolutions of Council throughout the year and to the present date.



We have identified to you:


guarantees;



indemnifications against damages, liabilities, costs, charges or expenses suffered or incurred
by officers or directors as a result of their service, and/or by any subsidiaries; and



non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration.

Fraud and Error


We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.



We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the entity and involves:





management;



employees who have significant roles in internal control; or



others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators, or others.

Existence, Completeness and Valuation of Specific Financial Statement Balances
 There are no pledges or assignments of assets as security for liabilities except as disclosed in the
financial statements.
 All financial instruments have been appropriately recognized and measured in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant assumptions used in arriving at fair value of
financial instruments are reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.
 Where the value of any asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision has been made in the
financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to you.
 The inventories as set out in the financial statements represent all of the inventories to which the
municipality held title as at the balance sheet date. Inventories do not include any goods consigned
to the municipality, merchandise billed to customers or any items for which the liability has not been
provided in the books. Appropriate provisions have been made for obsolete, slow-moving and
defective inventories.
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 The employee future benefit costs, assets and obligation have been determined, accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The source data and plan
provisions provided are complete and accurate. The plans included in the valuation are complete.
The determination of the discount rate and the use of specific actuarial assumptions are our best
estimate assumptions. We feel that the extrapolations are accurate and have properly reflected the
effects of changes and events occurring subsequent to the most recent valuation that had a material
effect on the extrapolation.

General Representations










Where
the
value ofyou
anywith
asset
has been assumptions
impaired, anthat
appropriate
provision
been made
We
have
provided
significant
in our opinion
are has
reasonable
and
in
the financialreflect
statements
or has
otherwise
to you.
appropriately
our intent
and
ability tobeen
carrydisclosed
out specific
courses of action on behalf
of the entity when relevant to the use of fair value measurements or disclosures in the
financial statements.
We confirm that there are no derivatives or off-balance sheet financial instruments held at
year end that have not been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements.
Except as disclosed in the financial statements, there have been no changes to title, control
over assets, liens or assets pledged as security for liabilities or collateral.
The entity has complied with all provisions in its agreements related to debt and there
were no defaults in principal or interest, or in the covenants and conditions contained in
such agreements.
There have been no plans or intentions that may materially affect the recognition,
measurement, presentation or disclosure of assets and liabilities (actual and contingent).
The nature of all material uncertainties have been appropriately measured and disclosed in
the financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the
estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to
the financial statements.
There were no direct contingencies or provisions (including those associated with guarantees or
indemnification provisions), unusual contractual obligations nor any substantial commitments,
whether oral or written, other than in the ordinary course of business, which would materially
affect the financial statements or financial position of the entity, except as disclosed in the
financial statements.



We have disclosed to you all significant customers and/or suppliers of the municipality who
individually represent a significant volume of business with the municipality. We are of the
opinion that the volume of business (sales, services, purchases, borrowing and lending) done by
the municipality with any one party is not of sufficient magnitude that discontinuance would
have a material negative effect on the ongoing operations of the municipality.



We confirm that operating segments are appropriately identified and disclosed in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards.



No significant matters, other than those disclosed in the financial statements, have arisen that
would require a restatement of the comparative financial statements.

Other Representations Where the Situation Exists
 We have informed you of all known actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not they
have been discussed with legal counsel. When applicable, these litigation and claims have been
accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.
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 We have made the following additional significant representations to you during the course of
your audit which we understand that you have relied upon:
Management confirms that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we have:


Evaluated all land owned by the municipality or where the municipality has accepted
responsibility for the land as to whether there are sites in the Scope of PS 3260 Liability for
Contaminated Sites.



Made available to you all financial records and related data relevant to the assessment of
the liability for contaminated sites.



Appropriately set up, accounted for and disclosed all liabilities for contaminated sites.

 The
We have
have
disclosed
to all
youthe
our
assessment
of the in
entity's
ability
to
continue
operating
asprior
a
provided
you
relevant
information
order
appropriately
record
and
disclose
financial
statements
and
any
other
information
in theto
annual
report
provided
to you
going
concern.
Our
plans
for
future
action
and
the
feasibility
of
these
plans
are
as
follows:
the
restatement
made
to
correct
a
material
misstatement
in
the
prior
period
financial
to the date of this representation letter are consistent with one another, and there is no
statements
that affect the
comparative
information.
was
for:the final version
material misstatement
of the
other information.
We This
haverestatement
provided you
with
Yours truly,

Click
"list
the
concerns"
to
add
content
of the document(s) comprising the annual report.

Click "Disclose the nature of the restatement" to add content
 (If some/all of the document(s) comprising the annual report will not be available until after
_____________________________________
_______________________________________
the date of the auditor’s report, include:)
We will provide to you, when available and prior to
Signature
issuance by the entity, the final version Position
of the document(s) comprising the annual report.

_______________________________________
Signature

_______________________________________
Position
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County of Grey
Summary of Unadjusted Misstatements
December 31, 2018
Pre-Tax Proposed Adjustments
Description of the
Misstatement

Identified
Misstatement

Projected
Misstatement

Estimates

Assets
Dr(Cr)

Liabilities
Dr(Cr)

Opening R/E
Dr(Cr)

Income
Dr(Cr)

-

-

-

-

-

Effect of Previous Year's
Errors, Net of Tax Effects

-

-

-

-

Tax Effect

-

-

-

-

Likely Aggregate
Misstatements

-

-

-

-

Likely Aggregate
Misstatements Before Effect
of Previous Year's Errors
and Estimates

-

-

Details of why no adjustment has been made to the financial statements for the above items:
Amount not considered significant to the results of the County of Grey.
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APPENDIX D: BDO RESOURCES
BDO is a leading provider of professional services to clients of all sizes in
virtually all business sectors. Our team delivers a comprehensive range
of assurance, accounting, tax, and advisory services, complemented by
a deep industry knowledge gained from nearly 100 years of working
within local communities. As part of the international BDO network,
we’re able to provide seamless and consistent cross-border services to
clients with global needs. Commitment to knowledge and best practice
sharing ensures that expertise is easily shared across our global network
and common methodologies and information technology ensures efficient
and effective service delivery to our clients.

Outlined below is a summary of certain BDO resources, which may be of
interest to the Members of the Committee of the Whole.

TAX BULLETINS, ALERTS AND NEWSLETTERS
BDO’s national tax department issues a number of bulletins, alerts
and newsletters relating to corporate federal, personal, commodity,
transfer pricing and international tax matters.
For additional information on tax matters and links to archived tax
publications, please refer to the following link: Tax Library | BDO
Canada

PSAB PUBLICATIONS
The County applies Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAB).
If the County would like additional information about the accounting
standards or about upcoming changes please see the website below and
review the BDO publications available to our clients. Publications relevant
for the County would include the following:



NEW AUDITOR REPORTING
In April 2017, the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AASB) in
Canada approved the new and revised auditor reporting standards as
Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs). These new standards will be
effective for audits of financial statements for periods ending on or
after December 15, 2018 with early application permitted.

“Public Sector Accounting Standards Update 2018” which
provides you with details on recent changes to PSAB Standards.

http://www.bdo.ca/BDO/media/FRS/ASNPO/PSAS_Update_24Sep18.pdf



Highlights of the changes include:

“Public Sector at a Glance” which provides you with details on
PSAB Standards.





http://www.bdo.ca/en-ca/services/assurance-and-accounting/a-aknowledge-centre/psas/



Re-ordering of the auditor’s report, including moving the opinion
paragraph to the first section;
Expanded descriptions of each groups responsibilities;
Disclosure of the name of the engagement partner for listed
entities; and
Optional description of key audit matters

For further information on this topic, please reach out to your
dedicated BDO team.
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the County of Grey which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and the consolidated statements of
operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and have issued our
report thereon dated May 23, 2019.
The audit was performed to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The
information in this year-end report is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. The information was derived from the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information in
this year-end report has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves.
The year-end report is prepared to provide Council with more detailed financial information and graphical
analysis of the consolidated financial statements. As a result, the year-end report may not be suitable for
other purposes. Our year-end report is intended solely for the use of Council and should not be distributed
to or used by parties other than Council in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements.
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WHERE ARE YOU TODAY?
2014
Cash and temporary investments
Trade and other receivables
Other

2015

2016

2017

2018

57,663,636

58,928,067

59,619,551

57,084,235

64,477,827

2,348,622

3,659,837

2,450,026

3,080,701

3,174,940

12,564

11,539

11,138

11,473

10,024

60,024,822

62,599,443

62,080,715

60,176,409

67,662,791

6,106,804

10,768,924

8,945,687

10,485,315

16,289,339

6,420,519

6,201,179

8,265,984

7,661,908

7,619,250
11,316,965

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liablities
Vacation pay, post-employment benefits and WSIB
Schedule II liabilities
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Deferred Revenue

7,734,823

6,114,239

7,379,465

9,883,345

Net long-term liablities

1,981,277

2,993,195

2,000,000

1,600,000

4,493,973

22,243,423

26,077,537

26,591,136

29,630,568

39,719,527

37,781,399

36,521,906

35,489,579

30,545,841

27,943,264

168,828,886

172,294,241

174,169,747

183,721,051

201,217,731

Net financial assets

Accumulated surplus
Invested in tangible capital assets
Net book value of tangible capital assets
Unexpended financing (Unfinanced capital)

(946,048)

(853,565)

(779,503)

(7,295,143)

(8,607,784)

Capital assets financed by long-term liabilities
and to be funded in future years
Total invested in capital assets
Unfunded post-employment benefits
Unfunded commitment to Grey Bruce Health Services
Unfunded commitment to Georgian College
Other surplus
Reserves

(1,181,280)
166,701,558

(593,195)
170,847,481

173,390,244

(3,293,973)
176,425,908

(5,825,883)

(5,615,745)

(7,664,899)

(7,071,121)

(800,000)

(600,000)

(400,000)

(200,000)

(1,800,000)

(1,600,000)

(1,400,000)

-

189,315,974
(7,040,495)
(1,200,000)

1,424,698

1,405,741

1,209,825

1,070,647

1,269,853

161,500,373

164,237,477

164,935,170

168,825,434

182,345,332

46,560,802

46,019,475

46,131,947

46,553,044

48,112,282

208,061,175

210,256,952

211,067,117

215,378,478

230,457,614
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CASH FLOWS
2014
Cash and temporary investments

2015

2016

2017

2018

57,663,636

58,928,067

59,619,551

57,084,235

64,477,827

14,727,342

19,333,154

17,686,420

20,434,569

26,699,910

(10,914,313)

(17,480,641)

(16,001,741)

(1,290,224)

(588,082)

(993,195)

Cash Flows
Operating
Capital transactions
Financing
Increase (decrease) in cash

2,522,805

1,264,431

691,484

(22,569,885) (22,200,291)
(400,000)

2,893,973

(2,535,316)

7,393,592

63
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TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Land and Land
Improvements

1,291,744

1,340,994

1,746,686

1,675,515

2,291,919

44,870,897

44,979,392

47,193,752

55,465,422

63,185,147

4,708,226

4,416,708

4,802,898

4,813,798

5,734,252

100,990,518

105,005,018

103,783,882

103,734,268

111,167,147

12,842,117

12,650,839

13,247,688

14,370,920

14,330,065

4,125,384

3,901,290

3,394,841

3,661,128

4,509,201

Net Book Value

168,828,886

172,294,241

174,169,747

183,721,051

201,217,731

Historical Cost

395,675,860

408,260,450

420,469,488

437,739,002

462,714,131

Buildings
Machinery &
Equipment
Roads
Bridges and Culverts
Vehicles

Definitions:
Historical Cost –

the price of an asset on the balance sheet based on its original cost when acquired

Net Book Value -

the amount recorded for an asset based on its historical cost less accumulated amortization

Amortization -

the allocation of the cost of an asset over its useful life
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FOUR YEAR AND BUDGET COMPARISON OF REVENUES

Taxation

2015

2016

2017

2018

Budget

$ 51,377,416

$ 52,760,353

$ 54,844,864

$ 55,557,664

$ 55,520,665

Fees and user charges

12,468,173

10,476,788

9,866,339

10,189,431

9,666,846

Government transfers

52,153,538

50,494,104

53,982,270

60,519,460

59,042,445

Provincial Offences

2,474,738

2,374,188

2,186,128

2,281,651

2,210,000

Licenses, permits and rents

3,756,881

3,781,531

3,834,869

4,014,981

3,782,498

Assumption of non-profit housing
Other income (expense)

-

-

-

5,009,255

-

1,618,911

2,316,732

2,918,394

2,885,166

4,239,315

$ 123,849,657

$ 122,203,696

$ 127,632,864

$ 140,457,608

$ 134,461,769

2018 REVENUES
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FOUR YEAR COMPARISON OF OPERATING EXPENSES AND
BUDGET
(excluding amortization)
2015

Council
General government

2016

2017

2018

Budget

582,786

587,239

624,764

625,123

657,200

8,863,042

6,888,098

6,887,355

6,850,596

7,158,600

Corporate overhead

373,431

424,199

477,900

786,604

557,200

Emergency management

202,144

155,289

178,165

214,417

212,800

Provincial Offences

1,800,258

1,826,187

1,694,682

1,713,174

1,726,362

Transportation services - Roadways

9,021,805

10,240,965

10,649,102

10,483,269

8,272,559

Transportation services - Winter control

1,679,542

1,817,625

1,974,294

1,710,501

2,082,800

Health Unit

1,787,027

1,695,252

1,853,813

1,676,724

1,669,619

Paramedic services

12,308,352

13,092,287

12,934,178

13,547,835

12,875,800

Social services - General assistance

19,074,226

18,371,982

18,387,214

18,779,338

19,599,516

Social services - Child care

7,583,510

8,228,296

8,797,906

11,028,694

11,156,628

Social services - Other assistance

1,838,388

1,764,119

1,754,133

1,970,703

1,948,155

Long-term care

26,267,671

27,272,403

26,965,780

28,202,835

27,749,811

Social housing

10,639,865

10,949,522

12,280,702

12,960,035

11,985,618

2,017,901

1,941,510

1,973,572

2,049,412

2,045,700

785,110

812,969

753,962

715,123

816,400

1,069,923

953,247

1,527,758

1,508,735

1,543,000
478,100

Grey Roots
Planning and Development
Tourism and Economic Development
Agriculture and forestry

315,164

448,103

436,755

383,713

2,000,000

-

-

-

-

108,210,145

107,469,292

110,152,035

115,206,830

112,535,868

Salaries

49,702,978

53,163,520

52,451,865

54,477,583

54,539,814

Interest

85,748

56,580

32,621

47,028

Materials & supplies

11,725,497

11,931,882

12,143,564

12,205,016

13,144,628

Contracted services

10,981,277

11,853,571

12,395,012

14,100,011

11,016,915

Other transfers

33,815,907

28,474,514

30,745,363

32,423,815

31,865,399

Long-term commitments
Total

Rents & financial expense

-

1,898,738

1,989,225

2,383,610

1,953,377

1,969,112

108,210,145

107,469,292

110,152,035

115,206,830

112,535,868
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2018 OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

2018 OPERATING EXPENSES BY OBJECT
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DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY OF SURPLUS TRANSFERRED TO
RESERVES
Budget
Revenue

Actual
Revenue

Budget
Expenditure

Actual
Expenditure

Surplus / (Deficit) Internal
Before Allocations Allocations
and Transfers

Transfer
to (from)
Reserve

Surplus
(Deficit)

CORPORATE SERVICES
Taxation & Grants

$ 56,225,165 $ 56,303,741 $

704,500 $

746,077

36,999

(36,999)

$

-

Council

$

23,000 $

16,069 $

666,978 $

651,901

8,146

(8,146)

$

-

Admin. Departments

$

1,878,400 $

1,887,575 $

6,202,265 $

5,964,301

247,139

(391,272)

(144,133) $

-

Information Services

$

316,600 $

301,552 $

316,600 $

297,172

4,380

(4,380)

$

-

Weekly Indemnity

$

-

Workers Compensation

$

(200) $

$

(311) $

-

$

$

(52,301)

52,301

(52,301)

$

-

(200) $

-

75,235

(75,546)

52,300

(23,246) $

-

Property

$

100,800 $

1,849,195 $

1,265,751 $

3,007,799

6,347

(6,347)

$

Provincial Offences

$

2,404,300 $

2,494,694 $

2,018,865 $

2,045,569

63,690

(63,690)

$

-

Assessment

$

$

1,816,600 $

1,834,995

(18,395)

18,395

$

-

Health Care and Education

$

174,567 $

2,141,319 $

2,148,423

123,265

(123,265)

$

$ 60,992,263 $ 63,027,082 $ 15,132,678 $ 16,719,171

448,326

(615,705)

(167,379) $

(135,854)

-

$

44,198 $

-

-

PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Planning & Development

$

299,700 $

215,205 $

992,208 $

771,859

135,854 $

Econ. Dev., Tourism, Forestry & Agriculture

$

754,300 $

618,295 $

2,375,576 $

2,690,106

(450,535) $

Grey Roots

$

275,950 $

435,172 $

2,415,070 $

2,516,344

$

1,329,950 $

1,268,672 $

5,782,854 $

5,978,309 $

520,535 $

57,948 $
(256,733) $

-

$

384,681 $

$

-

70,000 $

-

57,948 $

-

127,948

SOCIAL SERVICES
Ontario Works and Child Care

$ 28,623,886 $ 27,694,211 $ 32,076,296 $ 30,976,662

169,959 $

(169,959)

Housing

$

7,613,723 $ 13,216,160 $ 15,080,146 $ 20,195,228

487,355 $

(160,100) $

5,104,177 $

6,498,752 $

-

Grey Gables

$

6,456,141

54,883 $

-

$

54,883 $

Lee Manor

$ 11,584,300 $ 11,885,852 $ 13,509,291 $ 13,727,721

83,122 $

-

$

83,122 $

-

Rockwood Terrace

$

8,314,600 $

7,721,017 $

9,903,670 $

9,301,056

9,031 $

-

$

9,031 $

-

$

136,200 $

10,683 $

1,497,210 $

1,371,693

$

-

804,350 $

(330,059) $

474,291 $

-

561,083 $

Long Term Care Redevelopment

5,116,449 $

$
327,255 $

$ 61,376,886 $ 65,644,372 $ 78,565,365 $ 82,028,501 $

-

$

-

TRANSPORTATION & PUBLIC SAFETY
Paramedic Services

$

8,622,931 $ 14,965,117 $ 15,587,020

(561,083) $

Transportation Services

$ 12,765,608 $ 11,785,990 $ 30,580,804 $ 30,022,596

8,562,111 $

(421,410) $

$ 21,327,719 $ 20,408,921 $ 45,545,921 $ 45,609,616 $

(982,493) $

$ 145,026,818 $ 150,349,047 $ 145,026,818 $ 150,335,597 $

13,450 $

-

-

$

-

$

(421,410) $

-

561,083 $

(421,410) $

-

13,450 $

-

-

$

The departmental summary has been prepared by management. It does not include the expenditures for
WSIB Schedule 2 costs, vacation pay and post employment benefits and amortization.
Revenues and expenditures include transfers to and from reserves and debt principal repayments and therefore
columns do not agree to the consolidated statement of operations.

Internal allocations refers to the approved transfers required to fund departmental deficits.

69

10

WHAT YOU HAVE FOR THE FUTURE - RESERVES
Reserves
Working funds

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

1,930,799

1,930,799

1,930,799

1,930,799

1,930,799

Insurance

3,359,760

3,461,496

3,374,622

3,084,428

3,136,183

Current purposes

8,377,928

8,526,130

9,060,933

9,519,037

11,354,074

Capital purposes

32,892,315

32,101,050

31,765,593

32,018,780

31,691,226

46,560,802

46,019,475

46,131,947

46,553,044

48,112,282

50,000,000
45,000,000
40,000,000
35,000,000

Capital purposes

30,000,000

Current purposes

25,000,000

Insurance

20,000,000

Working funds

15,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
0
2014

2015

2016

2017

2014

2015

2018

2016

2017

2018

Reserves as a % of Total Expenses

45.91%

42.53%

42.93%

42.26%

41.76%

Reserves as a % of Taxation

89.06%

89.57%

89.79%

84.88%

86.60%
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WHAT YOU HAVE FOR THE FUTURE – OBLIGATORY RESERVE
FUNDS

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Development Charges

3,295,811

3,585,057

4,462,419

6,408,480

7,804,714

Federal Gas Tax

2,404,319

2,348,672

2,561,990

3,034,313

2,585,510

5,700,130

5,933,729

7,024,409

9,442,793

10,390,224

Obligatory Reserve Funds
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

FR-CW-14-19

Title:

2018 Development Charges Reserve Fund Statement

Prepared by:

Kevin Weppler, Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected:
Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report FR-CW-14-19 regarding the 2018 Development Charges Reserve Fund
Statement be received; and
2. That Council accepts the Treasurer’s declaration that the County is in compliance
with the reporting requirements of the Development Charges Act, 1997 and any
additional reporting requirements identified by the Smart Growth for our
Communities Act, 2015 (Bill 73); and
3. That Report FR-CW-14-19 and related attachments be made available on the
County’s website or upon request.

Executive Summary
Annually, the Treasurer of the municipality is required, as per the Development Charges Act,
1997, to provide Council with a financial statement related to the Development Charges bylaw(s) and reserve funds. This statement must be made available to the public and may be
requested to be forwarded to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. The Development
Charges Act does not prescribe how the statement is to be made available to the public. Staff is
recommending that a resolution of Council make the statement available on the County’s
website https://www.grey.ca/development-charges. This report also provides information to
Council and ratepayers regarding the County’s 2018 Development Charges Reserve Fund and
the transactions that occurred in 2018.

Background and Discussion
The Development Charges Act, 1997 requires development charge collections (and associated

FR-CW-14-19
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interest) to be placed in separate reserve funds. Sections 33 through 36 of the Act provide the
following regarding reserve fund establishment and use:








a municipality shall establish a reserve fund for each service to which the Development
Charge by-law relates; s.7(1), however, allows services to be grouped into categories or
services for reserve fund (and credit) purposes, although only 100% eligible and 90%
eligible services may be combined (minimum of two reserve funds);
the municipality shall pay each development charge it collects into a reserve fund or
funds to which the charge relates;
the money in a reserve fund shall be spent only for the “capital costs” determined
through the legislated calculation process (as per s.5(1) 2-8);
money may be borrowed from the fund but must be paid back with interest (O. Reg.
82/98, s.11(1) defines this as Bank of Canada rate either on the day the by-law comes
into force or, if specified in the by-law, the first business day of each quarter);
development charge reserve funds may not be consolidated with other municipal reserve
funds for investment purposes and may only be as an interim financing source for capital
undertakings for which development charges may be spent (s.37).

Subsection 43(2) and O. Reg. 82/98 prescribes the information that must be included in the
Treasurer’s statement, as follows:











opening balance;
closing balance;
description of each service and/or service category for which the reserve fund was
established (including a list of services within a service category);
transactions for the year (e.g. collections, draws) including each assets capital costs to
be funded from the Development Charges reserve fund and the manner for funding the
capital costs not funded under the Development Charges by-law (i.e. non-development
charge recoverable cost share and post-period development charge recoverable cost
share);
for projects financed by development charges, the amount spent on the project from the
Development Charge reserve fund and the amount and source of any other monies
spent on the project;
for credits granted under s.14 of the old Development Charges Act, a schedule
identifying the value of credits recognized by the municipality, the service to which it
applies, and the source of funding used to finance the credit; and
a statement as to compliance with s.59(1) of the Development Charges Act, whereby
the municipality shall not impose, directly or indirectly, a charge related to a
development or a requirement to construct a service related to development, except as
permitted by the Development Charges Act or another Act.

Development Charges Revenue and Expenditures 2014-2018
Staff has also provided information on development charges revenue and expenditures for the
past five years.
The attached worksheet titled Development Charges Revenue and Expenditures 2014-2018,
summarizes the development charges revenue (receipts) collected by each of the local

FR-CW-14-19
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municipalities over the previous five years and provides a summary of the development charges
funded expenditures, by year, service and project.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
The Development Charges Act, 1997 and O. Reg. 89/98 are legislated requirements of the
Treasurer to provide Council with an annual report on the status of the County’s Development
Charges Reserve Fund.

Financial and Resource Implications
The 2018 Development Charges Reserve Fund Statement presented in this report satisfies the
County’s reporting requirements under the Development Charges Act, 1997 and O. Reg. 89/98.
Development charges are paid by the developer at the time the building permit is issued.
Development charges revenue collected for 2018 of $4,014,694 was similar to 2017 revenue of
$4,044,384. Development charges collected on residential units in 2018 was predominately for
builds of single and semi units with 504 units of a total of 612 units collected.
To ensure that the public is aware of the transactions affecting the development charges
reserve funds during 2018, this report and the applicable schedules will be posted on the
County’s website.

Relevant Consultation
☒ Internal – Finance staff
☐ External -

Appendices and Attachments
Attachment to FR-CW-14-19 Development Charges Reserve Fund
Attachment to FR-CW-14-19 Development Charges Reserve Fund – Amounts Transferred
Attachment to FR-CW-14-19 Development Charges Revenue and Expenditures 2014-2018
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County of Grey
2018 Annual Treasurers Statement of Reserve Funds for By-Law 4949-16 and 4950-16
Services to which the Development Charge Relates
Description

Non-Discounted
Services

Discounted Services

Roads and Related
Land
Works
Ambulance
Opening Balance, January 1, 2017

10,660.98

Public Works Buildings &
Fleet
434,951.59

242.34

199.27

8,130.01

242.34

199.27

8,130.01

Social
Housing

6,198,192.77 (182,357.71) 12,966.07
08

Children's
Services

Provincial
Offences
(76.720.19)

Employment
Resources
88,042.44

General
Government
89,911.15

Trails

Health Unit

2,729.68 (169,895.38)

Total
6,408,481.40

Plus:
Development Charges Collections
Accrued Interest
Sub-Total

3,577,335.42
142,977.44
3,720,312.86

83,238.63
(2,655.11)
80,583.52

11,560.93

95,184.95

4,624.37

81,697.20

3,853,641.50

2,542.23
97,727.18

82.94
4,707.31

(2,839.75)
78,857.45

148,995.64
4,002,637.14

(2,700.00)

(44,196.00)

(2,606,404.00)
0.00

(2,700.00)

(44,196.00) (2,098,323.00)

1,645.66
(1,329.39)
10,231.54

1,645.66

Less:
Amount Transferred to Capital (or Other) Funds
Amounts Refunded

(2,559,508.00)

Sub-Total

(2,051,427.00)

Closing Balance, December 31, 20187

FR-CW-14-19

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

7,358,997.63 (101,774.19) 13,208.41

10,860.25

443,081.60

(66,488.65)

89,688.10

187,638.33
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4,736.99

(135,233.93)

7,804,714.54
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County of Grey
For the Year Ending December 31, 2018
Amount Transferred to Capital (or Other) Funds

Revenue Fund Transactions
Trails
Trail Improvements
Sub-Total - General Government
Capital Fund Transactions
Roads & Related Works
Master Drainage Study
Grey Road 17
Grey Road 32
Sub-Total - Roads & Related Works
Health Unit
Health Unit Build*
Sub-Total - Health Unit
Total

Gross Cost

DC Reserve
Fund
Transfers

Grants, Subsidies
& Other
Contributions

DC Debt
Financing

15,386
15,386

(2,700)
(2,700)

50,000
3,521,224
2,055,898
5,627,122

(30,000)
(1,593,801)
(935,707)
(2,559,508)

45,317
45,317

(44,196)
(44,196)

0

5,687,825

(2,606,404)

0

Tax Supported
Fund Contributions

Post-Period
Benefit/Capacity
interim Financing

0

(12,686)
(12,686)

0

(20,000)
(131,782)
(1,080,562)
(1,232,344)

(982,832)
(39,629)
(1,022,461)

0

0

0

(1,121)
(1,121)

0

(812,809)

(1,232,344)

(1,036,268)

0

0

0

(812,809)
0

Other
Reserve/Reserve
Fund Transfers

(812,809)

*Annual Estimated DC Eligible Health Unit Expansion Capital Cost 2017-2026
Development Charges Background Study provided a Net Municipal Cost of $2,636,000, with $453,173 in DC Eligible Costs 2017-2026.
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County of Grey
Development Charges Revenue (Receipts) 2014-2018
2014
Blue Mountains
Chatsworth
Georgian Bluffs
Grey Highlands
Hanover
Meaford
Owen Sound
Southgate
West Grey
Interest Income

FR-CW-14-19

284,461
64,056
150,318
133,268
25,629
72,614
41,006
30,754
249,124
34,002
1,085,232

2015
444,822
78,039
92,780
167,927
83,242
145,673
228,112
84,109
150,939
35,044
1,510,687

2016
854,209
131,523
142,116
152,708
175,659
212,733
70,617
78,561
171,527
34,831
2,024,484
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2017
1,663,264
195,060
281,089
217,000
146,475
371,609
340,652
553,350
212,019
63,866
4,044,384

2018
1,303,456
166,514
379,001
243,648
282,657
395,888
353,352
371,958
357,168
148,995
4,002,637

Total
4,550,212
635,192
1,045,304
914,551
713,662
1,198,517
1,033,739
1,118,732
1,140,777
316,738
12,667,424

May 23, 2019

County of Grey
Development Charges Funded Expenditures 2014-2018
DC Reserve Funds
Allocated

Year, Service & Project

2014 Roads & Related Works
Transportation Master Plan
Sub-Total
General Government
Growth Management Study
Natural Heritage Study
Sub- Total
Trails
CP Rail Trail
Sub- Total
Health Unit
New Health Unit
Sub- Total
Total -2014

4,656
4,656
33,080
5,265
38,345
675
675
79,706
79,706
123,382

2015 Roads & Related Works
Grey Road 29 - Meaford
Grey Road 15 - Owen Sound
Transportation Master Plan
Sub-Total

222,051
846,026
329
1,068,406

General Government
Natural Heritage Study
Housing Study
Growth Management Study
Sub- Total

54,679
8,067
10,582
73,328

CP Rail Trail
Sub- Total

-

New Health Unit
Sub- Total

79,706
79,706

Trails

Health Unit

Total -2015

1,221,440
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DC Reserve Funds
Allocated

Year, Service & Project
2016 Roads & Related Works
Grey Road 8 - Southgate
Grey Road 170 - Georgian Bluffs
Grey Road 12 - Grey Highlands
Grey Road 40 - EA - Blue Mountains
Sub-Total
General Government
Development Charges Background Study
Sub- Total
Trails
CP Rail Trail
Sub- Total
Provincial Offences
Expansion/Renovation of Admin. Bldg.
Sub- Total
Health Unit
New Health Unit
Sub- Total
Total -2016

2017 Roads & Related Works
Grey Road 18 - Georgian Bluffs
Grey Road 25 - Chatsworth/West Grey
Grey Road 119 - Blue Mountains
Sub-Total
Trails
CP Rail Trail
Sub- Total
Health Unit
New Health Unit
Sub- Total
Total -2017

441,818
55,287
339,655
52,639
889,399
37,342
37,342
675
675
140,000
140,000
79,706
79,706
1,147,122

475,948
685,784
889,695
2,051,427
2,700
2,700
44,196
44,196
2,098,323
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DC Reserve
Funds Allocated

Year, Service & Project
2018 Roads & Related Works
Master Drainage Study - Owen Sound/Town of Blue
Mountains/Meaford/Georgian Bluffs
Grey Road 17 - Georgian Bluffs
Grey Road 32 - Grey Highlands
Sub-Total

30,000
1,593,801
935,707
2,559,508

Trails
CP Rail Trail
Sub- Total

2,700
2,700

New Health Unit
Sub- Total

44,196
44,196

Health Unit

Total -2018

Development Charges Funded Expenditures
2014-2018
Total

2,606,404

7,196,671
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YEAR IN REVIEW
2018 -19

Highlights from Georgian College’s
marine programs in Owen Sound
The Algoma Central Corporation Marine Emergency
Duties (MED) Centre at Georgian College’s Owen Sound
Campus has been fully operational for more than two years
now, furthering the marine field with highly trained cadets
preparing for careers out on the water.
We’d like to share some marine program highlights with you
as one of the key contributors to the centre. It’s because of
your generous investment that we now offer unparalleled
marine training within Owen Sound to serve the Great Lakes
shipping industry.
TRAINING THE FUTURE MARINE WORKFORCE
Unsurpassed training for both cadets and mariners offered
through our three postsecondary marine programs.
PROGRAM

ENROLMENT (winter 2018 semester)

Marine Engineering Technology advanced diploma

43 cadets

Marine Technology – Navigation advanced diploma

71 cadets

Marine Engineering Management graduate certificate

14 students

TOTAL

128

Between September 2018 and August 2019, our
cadets will undergo marine emergency duties
courses in:
•

Standards of Training, Certification of
Watchkeepers (STCW) Basic Safety

•

STCW Proficiency in Survival Craft

•

STCW Advanced Firefighting

•

MED Refresher

•

Marine Advanced First Aid

•

Marine Basic First Aid

•

Vessel Personnel with Security Responsibilities

ACCELERATE your success
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TRAINING THE CURRENT MARINE WORKFORCE
One of the many advantages of the Centre for Marine Training and Research, which houses the
Algoma Central Corporation Marine Emergency Duties Centre, is that courses are offered both
on and off site. In most cases, mariners, (i.e. the shipping industry) come on site for training while
commercial vessel clients (e.g. ministries, fire departments and electric utilities) receive off site
training.
In the 2018-19 season, out of town participants accounted for approximately 90 per cent of the
training carried out at the MED Centre. The specialized training attracts participants from across
Canada, who stay an average of five days.
Semester

Number of
registrants
2017-18

Number of
registrants
2018-19

Difference
between years

Breakdown
of registrants

May 1 to Aug 30, 2018

635

995

+360

54 cadets
188 on site
753 off site

Sept. 1 to Dec 30, 2018

148*

661

+513

72 cadets
378 on site
211 off site

Jan. 1 to April 30, 2019

695

906

+211

55 cadets
715 on site
136 off site

TOTAL

1,473

2,562

1,089

*Please note that registration was about 70 per cent less in 2017-18 due to the Ontario college faculty work stoppage.

SOME OF OUR CLIENTS
• Algoma Central Corporation
• Lower Lakes Towing
• McAsphalt Marine Transportation
• Canadian Coast Guard
• Canada Steamship Lines†
• Mariposa Cruise Lines, off site
• Seafarers International Union
• Mckeil Marine Ltd.
• Owen Sound Transportation
• Safety Scope†, off site
• Ministry of Natural Resources
• Niagara Regional Police†, off site
• Parks Canada, off site
• Toronto Water Taxi, off site
• Cree Nation – James Bay, off site
† new client

The Centre maintains an on-going relationship with the Owen Sound Fire and Emergency Services.
Meaford and Hanover fire departments are now interested in utilizing our facility for training.
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NEW PARTNERSHIPS AND PROGRAMMING
The MED Centre’s new director, Thomas Aulinger, has conducted needs analyses with a variety of
corporations to determine their employees’ training needs, leading to a spike in training this past
winter. He brings a wealth of knowledge and experience in the marine industry, further advancing the
centre and opening up new avenues for programming and partnerships.
The Centre for Marine Training and Research (CMTR) now offers several new courses to attract a
wider range of clients including:
• Electronic positioning system
• Leadership and management
• Leadership and teamwork
• Oil and chemical tanker familiarization
Bradley Moore, simulation
operator and developer, created
software for the Pelee Islander
and Goderich Harbour. This led
to the CMTR delivering Azimuth
training programs for staff at Owen
Sound Transportation. Upgrades
to the simulators will take place
soon, allowing for expansion of
programs.
A partnership in Panama remains
a priority for future training
opportunities and programming.
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IN THE COMMUNITY
Company training increased this year, with several large employee groups from various organizations
staying in the area for extended periods. This influx of people benefited the Owen Sound community
and local economy.
Building on our growing reputation, we are advancing the promotion of our training in both Toronto
and Ottawa through boat shows. Many students tell us they found out about our training through
these events. Our program has been featured on CTV News in both Toronto and Ottawa. More than
1,000 people visited our booth in Toronto and another 400 connected with us at the Ottawa show.
To strengthen our ties and increase awareness at these boat shows, we partnered with companies
in the marine industry, including Seafarers International Union, Lower Lakes, Algoma, Mckeil and
Canada Steamship Lines. Teaming up benefited the firms with their recruitment campaigns and also
helped promote our programs.
The upcoming cruise show in Toronto will also benefit the MED Centre, as cruise ships have a high
demand for MED courses.
IN CONCLUSION
Another successful year is behind us and the growth of the Algoma Central Corporation Marine
Emergency Duties Centre is showing no signs of slowing down. In fact, it’s full steam ahead. Word of
our exemplary training is spreading. Promotion, partnerships and innovative thinking are helping to
meet our enrollment targets and support the achievements of our alumni in their marine careers.
Our success would not be possible without you. Thank you for your continued support of marine
studies at our Owen Sound Campus.
If you have specific questions regarding the operations of the centre, please contact Fred Varkaris,
Dean, Owen Sound Campus, 519.376.0840, ext. 2041 or fred.varkaris@georgiancollege.ca
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May 13, 2019

Kathi Maskell, Chair
Hanover Public Library Board
451 10th Avenue
Hanover, ON N4N 2P1
Dear Mrs. Maskell:
Re:

Resolution - Cuts to Ontario Library Services

Please be advised that at the Committee of the Whole meeting held on Monday, May 6, 2019 the Council
of the Town of Hanover passed the following resolution:
Moved by COUNCILLOR HOCKING | Seconded by COUNCILLOR FLEET
WHEREAS the provincially funded Ontario Library Service agencies (Southern Ontario Library Service
and Ontario Library Service – North) provide vital shared and collaborative public library services,
including the Overdrive ebook collection, inter-library loan system and deliveries, technical support, skills
training, and other services that are not sustainable by small and rural libraries alone;
WHEREAS the Ontario Library Service agencies ensure consistent quality and range of services are
available to citizens through all public libraries no matter where they are located;
WHEREAS the Ontario Library Service agencies exist to provide value for money, efficiency and respect
for taxpayer dollars by acting as a source of expertise and coordination, and leverage combined
purchasing power to reduce operating costs for all Ontario public libraries; and
WHEREAS the role of these agencies is crucial to the day-to-day provision of services to the public at
libraries of all sizes in every part of Ontario;
THEREFORE, we the undersigned petition the Legislative Assembly of Ontario as follows:
1. To reverse the 50% funding cuts to Southern Ontario Library Service and Ontario Library Service
– North agencies and reinstate provincial funding for these services to at least the 2017-2018
funding level, and
2. To maintain the operating grant funding for all Ontario libraries.
AND THAT this resolution be sent to the MPP, Minister of Tourism, Culture and Sport and all
municipalities in Ontario.
CARRIED
Sincerely,

Brian Tocheri
CAO/Clerk
cc

Honourable Mike Tobolloa, Minister of Culture, Recreation & Sport – minister.mtcs@ontario.ca
Bill Walker, MPP Bruce-Grey-Owen Sound - bill.walker@pc.ola.org
Municipalities of Ontario
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From: TMrakas@aurora.ca <TMrakas@aurora.ca>
Sent: Tuesday, May 14, 2019 5:05 PM
Subject: Motion to oppose Bill 108
Good day everyone,
As committed to each of you in my previous correspondence, enclosed is a Motion developed
by the OMB Reform Working Group in response to Bill 108.
This Motion opposes the changes outlined in Bill 108 in its current state and sends a clear
message to the Government of Ontario that Municipalities need to be consulted on how we
grow.
Please consider adding this Motion to your Council agendas, as the Bill is in Second Reading. It
is imperative that collectively our voices are heard. Local governments should have the authority
to exercise greater control over planning matters in their own communities and by working
together we can build a positive future and ensure planning that’s for the people.
WHEREAS the legislation that abolished the OMB and replaced it with LPAT received unanimous – all party
support; and
WHEREAS All parties recognized that local governments should have the authority to uphold their provincially
approved Official Plans; to uphold their community driven planning; and
WHEREAS Bill 108 will once again allow an unelected, unaccountable body make decisions on how our
communities evolve and grow; and
WHEREAS On August 21, 2018 Minister Clark once again signed the MOU with the Association of Municipalities
of Ontario and entered into “...a legally binding agreement recognizing Ontario Municipalities as a mature,
accountable order of government.”; and
WHEREAS This MOU is “enshrined in law as part of the Municipal Act”. And recognizes that as “...public policy
issues are complex and thus require coordinated responses...the Province endorses the principle of regular
consultation between Ontario and municipalities in relation to matters of mutual interest”; and
WHEREAS By signing this agreement, the Province made “...a commitment to cooperating with its municipal
governments in considering new legislation or regulations that will have a municipal impact”; and
WHEREAS Bill 108 will impact 15 different Acts - Cannabis Control Act, 2017, Conservation Authorities Act,
Development Charges Act, Education Act, Endangered Species Act, 2007, Environmental Assessment Act,
Environmental Protection Act, Labour Relations Act, 1995, Local Planning Appeal Tribunal Act, 2017, Municipal
Act, 2001, Occupational Health and Safety Act, Ontario Heritage Act, Ontario Water Resources Act, Planning Act,
Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, 1997.
Now Therefore Be it Hereby Resolved That your Municipality oppose Bill 108 which in its current state will have
negative consequences on community building and proper planning; and
Be it further resolved that your Municipality call upon the Government of Ontario to halt the legislative
advancement of Bill 108 to enable fulsome consultation with Municipalities to ensure that its objectives for
sound decision making for housing growth that meets local needs will be reasonably achieved; and
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Be It Further Resolved That a copy of this Motion be sent to the Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario, The
Honourable Christine Elliott, Deputy Premier, the Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs, the
Honourable Andrea Horwath, Leader of the New Democratic Party, and all MPPs in the Province of Ontario; and
Be It Further Resolved That a copy of this Motion be sent to the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO)
and all Ontario municipalities for their consideration.
Regards,
Tom Mrakas
Mayor Town of Aurora
416-543-1624
http://www.mrakas.ca
http://www.facebook.com/mrakas4aurora

This e-mail is intended only for the named recipient(s) and may contain legally privileged and confidential information which is exempt from
disclosure under applicable law. Any unauthorized use, distribution or copying is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error,
or are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail, and permanently delete the original message. Please
be aware that Internet communications are subject to the risk of data corruption and other transmission errors. By submitting your or another
individual's personal information to the Town of The Blue Mountains you agree, and confirm your authority from such other individual, to our
collection, use and disclosure of such personal information in accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of
Privacy Act.
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

FR-CW-13-19

Title:

Provincial Budget – Impact on Funding for County of Grey

Prepared by:

Kevin Weppler, Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected:
Status:

Recommendation
1.

That Report FR-CW-13-19 be received for information; and

2.

That upon receiving more complete information from the Province on
program funding levels and service guidelines impacting the County’s
2019 approved budget and the 2020 budget, that staff prepare a further
report, including recommendations to address changes to funding and/or
service delivery, for consideration.

Executive Summary
Significant in-year and future year budget impacts are occurring as a result of the Ontario
government’s 2019 budget, tabled on April 11, 2019. Grey County has received
notification of changes in program funding levels, funding formulas and changes to
municipal cost sharing arrangements. This report summarizes the preliminary information
available at this time. Further information is anticipated over the next two months and
beyond.

Background and Discussion
This report provides a high-level summary of the information staff have received to date.
In some cases, staff are aware of changes to funding envelopes but have not received
the guidelines that provide details on how funds can be expended. The text below
provides a description of the changes as understood at this time. A table summarizing the
figures can be found beginning on page 5 of this report.
FR-CW-13-19
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Public Health – Grey Bruce Health Unit
Grey and Bruce counties have cost shared 25% of the operations of the health unit, with
each party’s contribution calculated as the percentage of the population that each of Grey
and Bruce have as a proportion of the total population of Grey and Bruce combined.
Currently Grey County’s proportion is 58.53%.
The Province has advised that the current 35 public health units, will be reduced to 10,
and that by April 1, 2020, a new regional public health entity will be formed comprised of
Grey, Bruce, Huron and Perth Counties governed by an autonomous board of health.
Whether there will be any municipal representation on the new board is unknown at this
time. Minister Elliott has stated that there will be further consultation with municipalities
before final decisions are made.
In addition, the following changes to the provincial municipal cost sharing have been
shared with Boards of Health. The cost sharing is to apply to all programs, including
those that were previously 100% provincially funded. This means the actual impact of the
change will be greater than the 5% reduction announced. It should be noted that
programs delivered by the Health Unit but funded by other Ministries, such as Ministry of
Children, Community and Social Services, are not to be part of this budget change.
Fiscal Year
Provincial/Municipal Cost Share
Prior to April 2019
75/25
2019-2020*
70/30, (60/40 for Toronto)
2020-2021
70/30, (60/40 for Toronto)
2021-2022
60/40 for 6 regions with population greater than 1million,
70/30 for 3 regions with population less than 1 million,
50/50 for Toronto

Ontario Works and Employment Services
The Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services (MCCSS) has announced the
implementation of reforms to these programs. These include:







Modernizing Service Delivery
Benefit Changes
o The Transition Child Benefit (TCB) will be eliminated in November 2019
o Ending the Addictions Services Initiative, a pilot program delivered by 17
municipal Ontario Works partners, as of July 31, 2019.
Moving People to Employment
o Previously announced changes to earning exemptions will be implemented
for social assistance recipients effective November 2019.
Cutting Red Tape and Restoring Accountability

FR-CW-13-19
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Child Care and Early Years
A memo dated April 18, 2019, from Jill Dubrick, Director, Early Years and Child Care
Programs and Service Integration Brach, Early Years and Child Care Branch, Ministry of
Education outlines changes to the child care system and the County’s 2019 provincial
child care allocation.




County will be required to cost-share operating portion of Expansion Plan Funding
at a rate of 80:20 provincial/municipal (previously 100% provincial).
Wage Enhancement administration funding will be cost shared 50:50
provincial/municipal (previously 100% provincial).
Administration funding envelope will remain at 50:50 cost share but will be based
on 5% of the overall budget (previously 10%).

Housing and Homelessness
A letter dated on April 17, 2019, from the Honourable Steve Clark, the Minister of
Municipal Affairs and Housing, provided a program-by-program information and the
County of Grey’s specific allocation.


New Programs have been announced to support the government’s Community
Housing Renewal Strategy.
o The Canada-Ontario Community Housing Initiative (COCHI) will provide
funding to replace the federal Social Housing Agreement funding that
expires each year, beginning 2019-20.
o The Ontario Priorities Housing Initiative will provide flexibility for Program
Administrators to address local priorities in the areas of housing supply and
affordability, including new affordable rental construction, community
housing repair, rental assistance, tenant supports and affordable
homeownership.

Long Term Care
No announcements on funding changes have been received at this time for Long Term
Care. Neither has the County received confirmation of the funding envelope for 2019.

Paramedic Services
AMO announced on April 15, 2019, that they had been informed by the government that it
was the Ministry of Health and Long Term Care’s intent to move 59 ambulance services
to 10 through restructuring.
On May 7, 2019, Alison Blair, Executive Director, Emergency Health Services Office has
indicated in a letter that subsequent to the governments review and in line with the
FR-CW-13-19
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government’s commitment to support frontline care, that the County’s 2019/20 base
funding continue at the same funding level as provided in 2018/19. There will be no
reductions in 2019/20 Land Ambulance Service Grant funding compared to 2018/19
funding.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
Programs and funding levels will be based on regulatory requirements.

FR-CW-13-19
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Financial and Resource Implications
Provincial Budget – Impact on Funding for Grey County
Program Changes

Provincial Change / Adjustment

Public Health


Mandatory Cost Shared
Programs



100% Funded Programs



New Senior’s Dental
Program and one-time
capital funding to support
implementation



2019/2020 – Provincial cost share of Public Health Units
to change from 75% provincial / 25% municipal to 70/30
effective retroactively to April 1, 2019; (60/40 for City of
Toronto).

2019
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

2020
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

($175,600)

($797,300)

Impact offset
with One-Time
mitigation
funding

2020/202 - 70/30 (60/40 for City of Toronto)
2021/2022 – 70/30 for 3 regions with a population of less
than 1 million, 60/40 for 6 regions with greater than 1
million population, 50/50 for City of Toronto.

One-time mitigation funding
of $700,000 in 2019-2020
provided to the Health Unit

FR-CW-13-19
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Provincial Budget – Impact on Funding for Grey County (continued)
Program Changes

Provincial Change / Adjustment

Ontario Works and Employment
Services


Modernizing Service Delivery



Benefit Changes
.
Moving People to
Employment




Cutting Red Tape and
Restoring Accountability

The Transition Child Benefit (TCB) will be eliminated in
November 2019
Ending the Addictions Services Initiative, a pilot program
delivered by 17 municipal Ontario Works partners, as of
July 31, 2019. Grey County was not one of the 17
municipal Ontario Works Addiction Services Initiative
pilots and therefore will not result in any changes.
Previously announced changes to earning exemptions will
be implemented for social assistance recipients effective
November 2019.
Ministry will establish targets for each CMSM to reduce
Ontario Works caseload. Funding levels will be tied to
caseload reduction targets.
Ontario Works Administration funding to be frozen at 2018
actual expenditures.

FR-CW-13-19
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2019
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

2020
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

To Be
Determined

To Be
Determined

Ontario Works
benefit costs
had been
funded 100%
by the
province.
Provincial
funding
changes based
on service
targets may
result in
additional
municipal
costs.
County of Grey
still awaiting
Ontario Works
administrative
funding budget
allocations for
2019.
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Provincial Budget – Impact on Funding for Grey County (continued)
Program Changes

Provincial Change / Adjustment

Child Care


Updates to Child Care
Funding Formula Data
Elements

Child Care funding formula updated with the 2016 census
data from Statistics Canada. Result is a reduction to Grey
County in 2019 child care allocations.



Changes to Municipal CostSharing and Administration
Threshold



Changes to Fee Stabilization
Support Funding



Continuation of Wage
Enhancement Funding and
Administrative Burden
Reduction

Beginning in April 1, 2019, County will be required to costshare the operating portion of Expansion Plan funding at a
rate of 80/20 provincial/municipal and all administration
funding, including Wage Enhancement administration
funding will now be cost shared at a rate of 50/50. In
addition, the threshold for allowable administration funding
municipalities can spend on child care will be reduced
from 10% to 5%.



Continuation of Base
Funding for Licensed Home
Child Care



Introducing new Ontario
Childcare Access and Relief
from Expenses (CARE) tax
credit.



New Child Care Plan

FR-CW-13-19

2019
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

2020
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

($562,500)

($750,000)

Based on
changes being
made effective
April 1, 2019

Fee Stabilization Support to end as of March 31, 2019.
An updated approach to service targets will be
implemented in 2019.
Wage Enhancement funding will continue to be funded at
current funding formula, while administration funding for
wage enhancement will be adjusted.
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Provincial Budget – Impact on Funding for Grey County (continued)
Program Changes

Provincial Change / Adjustment

Housing and Homelessness


Investment in Affordable
Housing for Ontario (2014
Extension)

Province has committed to providing Investment in
Affordable Housing for Ontario funding for 2019-20.



Community Homelessness
Prevention Initiative (CHPI)

Community Homelessness Prevention Initiative (CHPI) to
be maintained in 2019-20 at the 2018-19 level.



Two new programs being
launched in 2019-20 to
support government’s
Community Housing
Renewal Strategy
o Canada-Ontario
Community Housing
Initiative (COCHI)

Canada-Ontario Community Housing Initiative (COCHI)
for repair, regenerate and expand community housing and
to protect affordability support for tenants.

o

Ontario Priorities
Housing Initiative

FR-CW-13-19

2019
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

2020
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

($560,800)

($1,247,300)

Based on
average
provincial
funding
received 20162018

Reduction in
Community
Homelessness
Prevention
Initiative
funding in
2020

Ontario Priorities Housing Initiative to provide flexible
funding to all 47 Service Managers and the two
Indigenous Program Administrators to address local
priorities in the areas of housing supply and affordability,
including new affordable rental construction, community
housing repair, rental assistance, tenant supports and
affordable homeownership.
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Provincial Budget – Impact on Funding for Grey County
Program Changes

Provincial Change / Adjustment

Long Term Care


Ministry funding
announcement still
outstanding



Ministry of Health and Long
Term Care’s intent to move
52 paramedic services to 10
through restructuring

Currently no information on the government’s plan to the
restructure of paramedic services in Ontario.
County’s 2019/20 base funding continue at the same
funding level as provided in 2018/19.

County’s 2019/20 base
funding continue at the same
funding level as provided in
2018/19

Service Modernization Funding


Ontario Budget allocated
funding to support small and
rural municipalities’ efforts to
become efficient and reduce
expenditure growth in the
longer term.

FR-CW-13-19

2020
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

To Be
Determined

To Be
Determined

($174,500)

($174,500)

County 2019
budget
included a
provision for a
1.50%
inflationary
increase.

2019 shortfall
will need to
be included in
2020 budget,
unless
funding 2020
increases are
announced

$725,000

$0

As of May 14, 2019, no funding announcements have
been provided.

Paramedic Services


2019
Estimated
Grey County
Funding
Impact

Municipal allocations are based on formula which takes
into consideration the number of households in a
municipality and whether it is urban or rural.
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One-time
payment of
$725,000
received in
March 2019.
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Financial and Resource Implications (continued)
In order for staff to verify the impact to the County’s 2019 budget and future budget
implications of the Provincial Budget that was tabled on April 11, 2019, more information
from the various ministries is needed along with the provincial guidelines. Early
estimates project that the Provincial budget changes will result in an overall funding
shortfall of $748,400 in 2019, after the application of any one-time provincial funding.
Based on changes announced in program funding levels, funding formulas and changes
to municipal cost sharing arrangements, a provincial funding reduction of $2,969,100 is
estimated for the 2020 budget year. Estimates are still being reviewed and will need to
be updated as new information is provided by provincial ministries.

Relevant Consultation
☒

Internal – Senior Management Team

☐

External (list)

Appendices and Attachments
AMO - Budget Update:- Provincial In-Year Funding Reductions
Community Housing Renewal Grey 2019-20 Allocation Letter
EYCC02 2019 Child Care and Early Years CMSMs DSSABs Allocations Memo
2019/20 Budget Allocation Grey Land Ambulance Services Grant
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

FR-CW-12-19

Title:

Health Care Funding

Prepared by:

Kevin Weppler, Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected:
Status:

Recommendation
1.

That Report FR-CW-12-19 regarding Health Care Funding be received;
and

2.

That Council provide direction to staff on the development of a
healthcare capital policy and the appropriate level of funding to help
guide future healthcare capital funding requests; and

3.

That Council provide staff with direction on the funding requests for the
Collingwood General and Marine Hospital and the Grey Bruce Health
Services MRI replacement.

Executive Summary
The County first examined the idea of an annual contribution to support hospital
redevelopment in 2005 and resolved that the annual budget include ½ of 1% of own
purpose levy as a contribution to capital construction of hospitals. As available
resources allowed, contributions were made to the Health Care Initiatives reserve. The
County’s 2019 budget includes a transfer to reserves in the amount of $277,300 for
Health Care Initiatives.
Council received delegations in 2018 from the Grey Bruce Health Services seeking a
donation of $400,000 over two years for the replacement of its magnetic resonance
imaging (MRI) machine and from the Collingwood General and Marine Hospital seeking
a $3M pledge payable over ten years towards its facility replacement project. Grey
County does not have a policy to guide health care funding decisions where the request
exceeds the contribution to the Health Care Initiatives reserve.
FR-CW-12-19
1
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A notice of motion was endorsed by Council on April 25th directing staff to bring a report
on health care funding, including spending over the past ten years, current reserve
funds, projected health care expenses and a comparison of health care levy with
neighbouring counties by May 23, 2019.

History of Health Care Funding
The County of Grey, since 1946, has provided health care funding to various hospitals
in Grey, Bruce, and Simcoe Counties. The largest capital grant provided by the County
of Grey was in 1982 when County Council endorsed By-law 2930 to make a capital
grant of $2,400,000 to the Grey Bruce Regional Health Centre to be used for the
construction of the new Hospital.
Other significant grants that have been approved by Council for Health Care Funding
are as follows:
 1988 - $506,560 to local hospitals in Meaford, Markdale, and Wiarton.
 1993 – $1,000,000 to the Grey Bruce Regional Health Care Foundation for the
acquisition of MRI Equipment.
 2005 – Grant of land and money to the Centre Grey Health Services Foundation
for the Centre Grey Hospital Campaign in the total amount of $1,000,000.
 2014 – $1,000,000 to the Grey Bruce Health Services in Support of Regional
Expenditures of “The Hospital Campaign”.
As part of the discussion of funding the Centre Grey Hospital Campaign, it was
endorsed by County Council that a Health Funding Roles and Responsibility Review
Committee be created to consider the question of “what should the County’s role be in
funding health care requests”. The Finance and Personnel Committee on June 8, 2005
received the Health Care Task Force report and recommended (in part) the following:
“THAT ½ of 1% of own purpose levy maximum per year for contribution to capital
construction of projects of hospitals be approved;…”
With the final $200,000 grant payment being made in 2008 for the acquisition of the MRI
equipment, and with the commencement in 2009 of the first of ten $100,000 payments
being set aside in a County Reserve for the Markdale Hospital construction, County
Council as part of the 2019 budget, endorsed the following recommendation:
“THAT Report CAOR-FP-01-09 regarding the 2009 Budget and Funding of
Contributions towards Capital Construction Project of Hospitals be received;
AND THAT subject to County Council approving the 2009 Budget, an amount of
$220,084, this being the maximum amount available through the application of
Resolution FP146-05, being ½ of 1% of own tax levy;
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AND THAT from this budgeted amount, the first of ten $100,000 payments to be made
towards the Markdale Hospital construction be set aside in a County reserve and drawn
only after preconditions of the County’s $1,000,000 donation to capital project have
been met.”
As approved, the first $100,000 contribution for the Markdale Hospital and an additional
$120,084 in a transfer to reserve was approved in the 2009 budget. However, in the
budget years of 2010 to 2013, in order to achieve a budget increase that was deemed
appropriate to Council, no additional funding was allocated from taxation to the Health
Care Initiatives Reserve. However in 2013, along with the $100,000 commitment to the
Markdale Hospital, a year-end transfer of $100,000 was approved to the Health Care
Reserve. Since 2014, the annual budget has been approved with ½ of 1% own tax
levy, with the 2019 budget containing an approved transfer to reserve in the amount of
$277,300.
The County has also authorized a funding request of $200,000 from the Residential
Hospice of Grey Bruce for its “Build a Home Hospice Campaign” to construct a
permanent residential hospice facility. As this funding request of $200,000 was not a
contribution for the capital construction of a hospital, the funding request was not funded
from the Health Care Funding Initiatives Reserve, but was approved as part of the 2017
budget to be funded from the One-Time Funding Reserve.
The following tables below provide information on the investments that the County has
made in hospital contributions and transfers to/from the Health Care Initiatives Reserve
over the period of 2010 to 2019, the Reserves for Health Care Initiatives, along with
information on health care spending by neighbouring counties.
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History of Health Care Spending 2009-2019
Health Care Initiative
Centre Grey Health
Services Foundation –
New Markdale Hospital
Grey Bruce Health
Services – The Hospital
Campaign
Health Care Initiatives
Reserve
Total
Percentage of Tax Levy
Levy Amount

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$200,000

$200,000

$200,000

$200,000

$200,000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$100,000

($45,390)

($39,959)

($42,891)

$64,500

$71,700

$277,300

$100,000
0.2%

$100,000
0.2%

$100,000
0.2%

$200,000
0.4%

$254,610
0.5%

$260,041
0.5%

$257,109
0.5%

$264,500
0.5%

$271,700
0.5%

$277,300
0.5%

$45,941,033

$48,284,709

$50,050,825

$50,922,179

$52,008,373

$51,421,811

$52,899,620

$54,340,234

$55,457,365

$57,220,894

Reserves
Reserve
Markdale Hospital Reserve
Health Care Initiatives Funding

Balance as of December 31, 2018
$785,160
$228,044

Comparison of Health Care Levy – Neighbouring Counties
County

2019 Budget Contribution/Commitment

Bruce County
Dufferin County
Huron County

Wellington County

Simcoe County

$25,000 – 4th installment of a 4 year commitment to Wingham Hospital
No current commitment.
$100,000 – 3rd installment of a 5 year commitment to Wingham Hospital
$150,000 – 1st installment of a 5 year commitment to Goderich Hospital
Committed a total of $14.4 million in capital grants to the County’s three
local hospitals over the past 10 years. The largest project is $10M to
construct a new Groves Memorial Hospital in Fergus. Some of these grants
are (or will be) funded by debt. Annual debt charges projected to be
$173,000 in 2019 and will annualize at $476,600 thereafter.
An annual payment of $3 million dollars per year shall continue for a period
of 15 years, commencing with the 2018 budget and ending at the 2032
budget, for a total of an additional $45 million dollars towards local hospital
capital infrastructure projects.
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Funding
Source
Reserve
-

% Levy
Contribution
0.00%
0.00%

No Formal Policy
No Formal Policy

Levy

0.59%

No Formal Policy

Levy

0.17% - 2019
0.48% - 2020

No Formal Policy

Levy

1.77%

Hospital Alliance
Funding Policy

Date: May 23, 2019

Policy

Financing Health Care Capital
Capital projects are funded differently than a hospital’s operating costs, which are the
costs needed to operate the hospital such as providing medical care, medications or
operating medical technology. Unlike operating costs, which are almost entirely funded
through government payments, capital costs are funded from a mixture of sources, such
as parking fees, renting out available space, and through individual and corporate
donations.
In Ontario, health care institutions need approval from their LHIN and the Ministry of
Health and Long Term Care before any major capital expenditures can be made. Once
approved, hospitals are responsible for 10% of the costs of major construction projects,
with the provincial government providing the remaining 90%.
In the case of medical equipment, not all medical equipment is funded the same. For
example, the cost of radiation therapy equipment for cancer is fully funded by the
Provincial Government. However, MRIs, if approved, are provided operating funds to
operate the equipment, but the purchase cost of the MRI and any future replacement
are the responsibility of the hospital.

Healthcare Capital Funding Policy
The 2019 budget was approved with a transfer to reserve in amount of $277,300 for
Health Care Initiatives. This amount of funding was based on the previously endorsed
Council motion that in annual budgets that ½ of 1% of own purpose levy maximum per
year for contribution to capital construction of hospitals be approved.
In developing a policy, Council should consider:




Is the current allocation of ½ of 1% of own source revenue appropriate?
Should funding be provided to both construction and capital equipment or just
construction?
On what basis should the level of commitment to each of the various hospital
organizations be considered, i.e. utilization by Grey County residents?

Development of a healthcare capital policy would provide clarity to stakeholders and
help guide future requests. Attached to this report are a couple of policies that other
Counties have developed for supporting community healthcare facilities for Council’s
information.

Current Healthcare Capital Funding
In the past, each funding request has been considered by Council individually.
Currently the County has received two delegations seeking funding.
FR-CW-12-19
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The first delegation request was received on September 27, 2018 from the Collingwood
General and Marine Hospital. The Collingwood General and Marine Hospital has
requested consideration in investing in the future healthcare in South Georgian Bay
through a $3 million dollar pledge payable over 10 years.
The second delegation request was received by Council on November 8, 2018. The
Grey Bruce Health Services is seeking a donation of $400,000 over 2 years, which
would maintain the annual level of funding support to the hospital that was provided by
the County of Grey over the years of 2014 to 2018 for GBHS’s “The Hospital
Campaign”.
In considering both of these requests, Council will need to provide staff with direction on
whether to:





Maintain the current endorsed funding level of ½ of 1% of own source levy
towards capital construction of hospitals
Extend the eligibility for support beyond capital construction to include equipment
(GBHS MRI)?
Extend the funding to a location outside of the County and LHIN boundaries (and
on what basis)?
If both are to be funded, how to apportion the amount of annual funding
commitment?

Hospital Patient Services Statistics
The following Patient Services Statistics have been provided by the Collingwood
General and Marine Hospital and Grey Bruce Health Services to illustrate the
breakdown of services and residence (postal code):
Collingwood and General Marine Hospital
Patient Services
for Fiscal Year 2017/18
Inpatient Admissions (not
including newborns)
Emergency Visits
O.R. Procedures – SDC
Newborns
Outpatients Visits (not including
DI and Lab)
Diagnostic Imaging Tests
Lab Tests (DTLAB)
Total
%

FR-CW-12-19

Total for All
Residence
Codes

Grey
County

Simcoe
County

Other

4,620

366

4,019

235

37,113
4,866
500

2,160
498
102

30,259
4,143
381

4,694
225
17

25,935

3,238

21,663

1,034

24,808
924

3,095
117

21,238
791

475
16

98,766
100%

9,576
9.70%

82,494
83.52%

6,696
6.78%
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Grey Bruce Health Services (All Sites*)
Patient Services
for Fiscal Year 2018-2019
Acute Inpatients
Emergency Visits
Day Surgery Visits
Newborns
Diagnostic Imaging (includes
MRI volumes)
Total
%

Total for All
Residence
Codes
9,431
94,287
11,459
691

Grey
County

Bruce
County

Simcoe
County

5,865
53,997
6,776
444

3,050
30,154
3,684
235

123,855

73,769

41,352

239,723
100%

140,851
58.75%

78,475
32.74%

Other

63
841
319
0
2,638

453
9,295
680
12

3,861
1.61%

16,536
6.90%

6.096

*All sites represent Owen Sound Regional Hospital, Lion’s Head Hospital, Markdale Hospital, Meaford
Hospital, Southampton Hospital and Wiarton Hospital.

If the GBHS annual funding commitment of $200,000 is used as the benchmark for
determining funding, then Grey County visits of 140,851 would equate to $1.42 in
capital funding per visit. This then would equate to approximately $13,600 in annual
funding to be provided to the Collingwood and General Marine Hospital. Note that
these statistics combine all of the GBHS sites and therefore may not be a fair
calculation for calculating funding for other single hospital sites.
Using only the Grey County patient services visits to the Collingwood and General
Marine Hospital does not consider the economic and tourism impact that the
Collingwood and General Marine Hospital provides to Grey County.
Council could consider the proportion of the assessment base that the Town of The
Blue Mountains and Grey Highlands provides to the County and then factor a portion of
this levy percentage based on a percentage that their residents and visitors would utilize
the Collingwood General and Marine Hospital. The table below is an estimate of what
this allocation could look like. This table is using a guestimate as to the percentage of
residents/visitors who would utilize the Collingwood General and Marine hospital from
these municipalities, but was done as an illustration as to how this possibly could be
calculated.
Allocation of Health Care Initiatives Levy by Estimate of Residents/Visitors
Utilizing Colling Wood General and Marine Hospital
Municipality

2019
County
Levy

% of
County
Levy

Estimate of
Residents/
Visitors
utilizing
Collingwood
G&M

Grey Highlands
Town of The Blue Mountains
Total

$6,782,857
$15,019,825

11.85%
26.25%

.25%
.50%
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Percentage
of Health
Care
Initiatives
Levy

2.96%
13.13%

Proportion
of Health
Care
Initiatives
Annual
Levy $277,300
$8,200
$36,400
$44,600

Date: May 23, 2019

Legal and Legislated Requirements
There are no legal or legislated requirements related to this report

Financial and Resource Implications
The 2019 approved budget contains a transfer to reserves from taxation in the amount
of $277,300 for Health Care Initiatives. If Council wishes to support any funding
commitments to support local hospital capital projects, the funding commitments will
need to align with current reserve and budget levels or future budget increases will be
required.

Relevant Consultation
☐

Internal (list)

☐

External (list)

Appendices and Attachments
CGMH Delegation Handout Council September 27, 2018
GBHS - Grey County MRI Delegation Handout Council November 8, 2018
GBHS Corporate Visit Breakdown by County Fiscal 2018-2019
Simcoe County Hospital Alliance Funding Policy
Oxford County Community Healthcare Capital Funding Policy
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

Review of Bill 108 More Homes, More Choice Act / PDR-CW-2419

Title:

Grey County Comments on Bill 108

Prepared by:

Grey County Staff

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove

Lower Tier(s) Affected:

All Municipalities within Grey County

Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report PDR-CW-24-19 regarding an overview of the ‘Bill 108: More Homes,
More Choices Act’ be received; and
2. That Report PDR-CW-24-19 be forwarded onto the Province of Ontario as the
County of Grey’s comments on the proposed legislation posted on the
Environmental Registry through postings # 019-0016, 019-0017, and 019-0021; and
3. That the Report be shared with member municipalities and conservation
authorities having jurisdiction within Grey County; and
4. That staff be authorized to proceed prior to County Council approval as per
Section 25.6(b) of Procedural By-law 5003-18.

Executive Summary
The Province recently released proposed legislative changes under ‘Bill 108: More Homes,
More Choices Act’ and they are seeking comments by June 1, 2019. Bill 108 proposes to
amend several pieces of Provincial legislation, most notably to the County the;








Planning Act,
Local Planning Appeal Tribunal Act,
Development Charges Act,
Environmental Assessment Act,
Endangered Species Act,
Conservation Authorities Act, and
Ontario Heritage Act.

PDR-CW-24-19
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County comments have already been submitted on the Endangered Species Act and the
Conservation Authorities Act as these were posted on the Environmental Registry. These
legislative changes impact the provision of housing, development approvals, the County’s ability
to build and maintain public infrastructure, and the collection of development charges. County
staff are supportive of some of the proposed amendments but have some concerns with other
planned changes, in some cases we do not have complete information.

Background and Discussion
On May 2nd, 2019 the Province introduced ‘Bill 108: More Homes, More Choices Act’, which
proposes to amend a broad spectrum of legislation, including but not limited to the;








Planning Act,
Local Planning Appeal Tribunal (LPAT) Act,
Development Charges Act,
Environmental Assessment Act,
Endangered Species Act,
Conservation Authorities Act, and
Ontario Heritage Act.

County staff have focused our review on those legislative changes that would appear to have a
direct impact on the County and our service delivery. The proposed Bill 108 can be found at this
link. The Province is seeking comments on Bill 108 by June 1st, 2019.
What follows are some summaries and comments on the proposed legislative changes through
Bill 108.

Planning Act Changes and Staff Response
The Province is proposing a wide array of changes to the Planning Act, some of which are
directly linked to both the LPAT Act and the Development Charges Act. The proposed changes
to the Planning Act can be summarized as follows, along with a staff response for each section.
1. Additional residential unit policies
Currently the Planning Act requires municipalities to include policies in their official plans that
permit secondary suites (apartments) in either the dwelling on the property, or an accessory
building on the property. The proposed changes would allow for secondary suites in both the
dwelling and the accessory building, and not require landowners to choose between having a
secondary suite in the dwelling or the accessory building.
Staff Response – No concerns provided municipal official plans can still contain the appropriate
criteria relating to servicing, parking, and lot size.
2. Inclusionary zoning policies
Currently some municipalities are prescribed to include inclusionary zoning policies in their
official plan, while others may include inclusionary zoning policies in their plans. Under the
proposed changes, those municipalities that are not prescribed may only contain inclusionary
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zoning policies where they relate to; (a) a protected major transit station, or (b) an area where a
development permit system has been established.
Staff Response – Staff fail to see the rationale for the proposed change and would prefer the
existing wording that gives non-prescribed municipalities more flexibility to implement
inclusionary zoning without having to implement a development permit system or be near a
major transit station.
3. Reduction of decision timelines
Currently the Planning Act establishes timeframes for processing development applications or
approving new official plans. If a municipality or approval authority does not make a decision
within these timeframes, the ‘non-decision’ can be appealed to LPAT. These timeframes are
proposed to change as follows:
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Application or Policy Type

Current Timeframe

Proposed Timeframe

Official Plans or Official Plan
Amendments

210 days (which can
be extended by a
further 90 days)

120 days (with no extensions)

Zoning By-laws, Zoning Bylaw Amendments, or Holding
Provisions

150 days

90 days (except where associated
with an official plan amendment, in
which case it’s 120 days)

Plans of Subdivision

180 days

120 days

Staff Response – Staff support the intent of the proposed changes to make the approvals
process more efficient. However, staff note that existing legislative minimum timeframes (e.g. 20
days minimum notice of a public meeting) when compared to Council schedules, may make it
difficult to process applications within this timeframe. In some cases, within a two-tiered
planning system, staff reports are required at both the local and county levels before a final
decision can be reached. In order to get on a council agenda reports may need to be written
two weeks early, and such reports may first need to be adopted by a committee before going
onto council a few weeks later. As such, in working ‘backwards’ in order to reach a final
decision staff may require two months of reporting through committee and council at the local
and county level. The requirement for peer reviews, or addendum studies from the proponent
can also set this timeframe back even further.
Compressed Timeframes
Should this legislation change, County staff will work with municipal staff to try to further
streamline the process wherever possible. However, staff would note that the Province is
essentially requiring that municipalities ‘do their jobs 40% quicker’ without adding any additional
resources or removing any barriers to enable such an expedited process. Staff are confident
that some efficiencies can certainly be found in our processes, but it may be tough to meet the
new deadlines in all circumstances. County Planning and IT staff have been working on
developing a Planning Application Tracking System which we believe will help to create
efficiencies in processing applications as well as better communicating to developers and the
public the status of an application.
While the above timeframes may be somewhat workable for many private development
applications, they do become much more complex when approving a new official plan. The
current legislation allows for one 90-day extension on the processing of an official plan or an
official plan amendment. As evidenced by the Province’s recent review of the County’s Recolour
Grey Official Plan, a 120-day approval can be very difficult to achieve for the approval of a new
official plan.
Pausing Timeframes if Additional Information is Required
It may be reasonable for municipalities and approval authorities to be able to ‘pause’ the
timeframe where additional information is required and where the applicant has agreed to the
extension. For example, if an application is received in July, and additional environmental field
work is required in Spring of the following year, the processing could be ‘paused’ to facilitate
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that field work if mutually agreed upon through an agreement. It is recommended that the
Province consider this as part of the proposed adjustments to the processing timeframes.
Staff would also request that the 90-day extension provision be kept for the approval of new
official plans or five / ten-year reviews.
4. 2017 amendments to the Act (Broader Range of Appeals)
When the Planning Act was amended in 2017 to implement the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal,
it provided a narrower range of opportunity for when an application could be appealed i.e. it had
to be inconsistent with the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) or not in conformity with a
provincial plan or upper tier plan. The proposed changes would allow for a broader range of
appeals, provided rationale is given for the appeals. Note this change is tied in with changes to
the LPAT Act.
Staff Response – Staff have no concerns with these changes provided appellants are required
to clearly state what they are appealing (e.g. what specific sections of an official plan or zoning
by-law), and the rationale for their appeal.
The current appeal system under LPAT appears to restrict some valid appeals where the
appellant did not include certain wording in their appeal.
5. Third party appeals for non-decisions on official plans
Currently municipalities or private individuals may appeal the non-decision on an official plan or
official plan amendment if timeframes noted above extend beyond the legislated maximum. For
example, if the local municipality adopted an official plan or official plan amendment and the
County as the approval authority failed to make a decision on the official plan or official plan
amendment within the prescribed timeframe then the municipality or private individuals could
appeal the non-decision. Furthermore, municipalities or proponents have the ability to extend
the processing timeframes from 210 days to 300 days (a maximum 90-day extension) for official
plans or official plan amendments. The proposed changes would;
a) only allow non-decision appeals from a municipality that adopted the plan, or the
proponent of an official plan amendment, and
b) eliminate the 90-day extension.
Staff Response – Staff see merit in limiting the non-decision appeals as proposed. However,
staff request the ability to retain the 90-day processing extension for the approval of new official
plans or five / ten-year reviews.
6. Bonusing changes to community benefits charge by-law
Currently section 37 of the Planning Act allows for ‘bonusing’ on development approvals where
additional height or density could be permitted in exchange for the developer providing
additional services or facilities. For example, a developer may be permitted to build an extra
storey on their apartment building, in exchange for that apartment building containing some
affordable housing. The proposed changes would replace the bonusing provisions with new
provisions for Community Benefit Charges (CBCs) By-laws. Community benefits may include
libraries, daycare facilities, or parks. These CBCs would be tied in with the proposed changes
to the Development Charges Act.
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Under the new system a municipality may impose a CBC against a development to pay for
capital costs of facilities and services required as a result of the development. CBCs cannot be
charged against services set out in the Development Charges Act. There are capped
maximums on what CBCs a municipality can charge relative to the land value of the property,
prior to building permits being issued. Municipalities must also hold CBC monies in a special
account and spend or allocate 60% of those monies collected each year.
There would also be regulation-making authority by the Minister to exempt some types of
developments from CBCs.
Staff Response – Bonusing has not been extensively used by Grey’s member municipalities in
recent years, though there were some municipalities that used to utilize bonusing quite
frequently, such as the Town of The Blue Mountains. Bonusing was available to local
municipalities only, not to counties.
In general, some members of the public and developers have questioned the transparency of
bonusing i.e. how are they to know at an application stage whether bonusing will be permitted
on any given application. From a public perspective this can lead to uncertainty on the types of
development that could be located adjacent to them. From a development perspective, it can
be tough to develop your pro forma when unsure of the total density or height that is permitted,
or the costs of the bonusing requested.
In principle, staff would support any changes that make the bonusing or CBCs processes more
transparent to both the public and development community.
The proposed changes would appear to allow both local municipalities and counties to
implement CBCs by-laws. This may or may not lead to confusion or potential duplication with
CBCs at county and municipal levels. For example, where a plan of subdivision and zoning
amendment were being considered it would appear that both the municipality (on the zoning)
and a county (on the subdivision) may be able to request a CBC. That said, however both the
counties and municipalities would appear to be ‘shut-out’ of CBCs where parkland dedication is
also being requested.
Staff also have concerns that having CBCs replace some aspects of the fees collected under
the current development charges program may lead to certain ‘soft services’ being underfunded,
or requiring additional funds from the general levy. This may impact municipalities in Grey more
than the County, where most of our development charges go towards ‘hard services’ (i.e.
roads).
Furthermore, because most municipalities in Grey have not utilized bonusing in the past, it
would mean that they may not be collecting CBCs at all, and simply ‘short’ that funding that
would traditionally have come through development charges. If a developer was proposing to
build at a municipally permitted density, then bonusing simply was not applied (i.e. they were
not seeking extra density). However, in those instances’ municipalities were still collecting
development charges. Depending on how the CBC by-laws work, municipalities may or may
not be eligible for funds here.
At this stage staff are also unaware of what percentage of land value municipalities will be able
to collect CBCs for. Depending on where the Province chooses to set this percentage it could
significantly impact the amount municipalities are able to collect.
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Staff see some concerns with having to spend or allocate 60% of the CBCs monies each year,
unless that allocation can be allocated to longer-term capital projects. There could be a number
of municipal projects ‘on the horizon’ where the CBCs money will not be spent in the current
year but will be allocated in a 5 or 10 year capital plan. Staff understand the intent of not
wanting municipalities to be able to just collect the money and not spend it on the purposes it
was intended for. That said, municipalities should not be required to ‘re-do’ their capital
planning each year, based on new developments being approved that year. It could also impact
municipality’s ability to save for larger projects with collected monies from a number of different
development projects.
Another key element towards the implementation of CBCs will be the transition provisions as
they relate to existing developments where bonusing requirements have yet to be met. If the
Province is to implement CBCs, municipalities with existing bonusing requirements should still
be protected.
7. Parkland by-laws and Community Benefit Charges under section 42 and
conditions under section 51.1
Currently section 42 of the Planning Act allows municipalities to collect 5% of residential land (or
2% for other land use types) for parkland or set alternative parkland provisions by by-law. If
land is not desired, municipalities also have the ability to collect cash-in-lieu of parkland. The
proposed changes would remove the ability for municipalities to set alternative parkland
provisions. Reporting provisions for municipalities that have collected cash-in-lieu monies are
also amended to remove the annual reporting requirement and require ‘reporting as prescribed’.
The changes to section 51.1 appear to remove the ability for a municipality to collect CBCs
where parkland dedication has also been required. Section 42 also contains proposed changes
to synchronize the parkland provisions with CBCs in a similar manner.
Staff Response – staff generally have no concerns with section 42 by-laws as these provisions
for parkland dedication and cash-in-lieu are a municipal responsibility.
Staff have serious concerns with limiting the ability for a municipality to collect CBCs, where
parkland dedication is also being required. If soft services are no longer covered under
development charges, then municipalities are being required to choose between parkland or
soft services. While staff are cognizant that municipalities should not be able to ‘double-dip’ and
collect twice, if community benefits are being collected for matters unrelated to parkland (i.e.
soft services), then CBCs and parkland dedication should be able to be collected in tandem.
8. Restricting third party appeals of plans of subdivision and other subdivision
changes
Currently when a plan of subdivision is approved under section 51 of the Planning Act, anyone
who has participated in the development application process is able to appeal the application to
LPAT (e.g. neighbours, agencies, utilities, municipalities, or the proponent themselves). Under
the proposed changes only municipalities and public bodies, select utilities, and the proponent
can appeal.
Section 51(20) has also been amended to remove the requirement for a minimum of 14 days
clearance between the public meeting for a plan of subdivision, and a decision by an approval
authority.
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Staff Response – staff understand the intent of limiting appeals on plans of subdivision is to
make the development process simpler and more predictable, to ensure housing can become
available more quickly. Staff would question whether disallowing such appeals will have the
desired effect, or if it will simply mean the implementing zoning by-law will instead be appealed.
If the Province’s desired approach is to limit such appeals on new housing, they may consider
whether or not similar provisions should be applied to the implementing zoning by-law. In
instances where lands are pre-zoned by a municipality, there would be no appeal rights for any
neighbours.
Staff see pros and cons to limiting appeal rights in this manner. Under the current system, an
appeal on a plan of subdivision can be costly for all involved and can take up to two years to
move through the appeal process. In limiting such appeals, it may place more pressure on
municipalities, counties, and developers to try to work with neighbours early in the subdivision
process to ensure their comments are heard and addressed to the extent feasible. However, a
cynic may note that limiting such appeals would remove the onus for municipalities, counties,
and developers to work with neighbours as their decisions can be made without the threat of
appeal to LPAT.
That said, it’s also curious that the Province would choose to limit appeals for subdivisions only,
and not for other applications which provide provincial and local benefit (e.g. for employment or
agricultural uses).
It is unclear what the reduction in the 14-day minimum gap between a subdivision public
meeting and a decision means at this stage. Based on the wording provided it would appear to
mean that a public meeting could be held and a municipality or county could approve the
subdivision the next day, or possibly even the night of the meeting.
9. Development permit system at local municipal/Minister discretion
Currently the Minister or an upper-tier municipality may require a local municipality to establish a
development permit system. Local municipalities have discretion as to which lands said
development permit systems would apply to. Under the proposed changes the upper-tier would
no longer have the ability to require local municipalities to develop a development permit
system. The Minister would however have the ability to dictate which lands the development
permit system would apply to.
Staff Response – at this stage staff are not clear under which circumstances the Minister would
require such a development permit system. Staff would recommend that some municipal
autonomy be permitted in selecting which lands were appropriate for a development permit
system.
10. Regulation-making powers
Through the proposed changes the Minister now has increased ability to make transitional
regulations based on changes to the legislation.
Staff Response – staff generally have no concerns with these provisions, provided transitional
regulations fairly consider the public, development industry, and municipal interests in planning
matters which are already in process prior to a legislative change. As much as possible, the
existing planning matters, and future planning matter should be treated in a fair and equitable
manner.
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Local Planning Appeal Tribunal Act (LPAT) Changes and Staff
Response
LPAT was initially implemented through Bill 139 in 2017 to replace the Ontario Municipal Board
(OMB). The changes to LPAT through Bill 108 would now be ‘un-doing’ a number of the Bill 139
changes, in favour of returning to the previous OMB system. The moniker LPAT would still
remain, and some hybrid systems between the current LPAT and the previous OMB would form
the basis for the new tribunal procedures. The proposed changes are as follows;
1. LPAT can now require mediation, prior to a contested hearing, even where all parties
have not previously consented to mediation.
2. LPAT can limit examination or cross examination of witnesses.
3. Participants (i.e. non-parties with some standing) to a proceeding will be required to
make their submissions in writing only, rather than being permitted to give oral evidence
at the hearing.
4. Case Management Conferences (CMCs) can now be required by LPAT for appeals in
certain matters (official plans, official plan amendments, zoning amendments, or plans of
subdivision).
5. Hearings will once again be conducted in a de novo fashion.
6. The tribunal can now set and charge different fees in respect to different classes of
proceedings.
7. Hearings can now be decided based on the ‘best planning outcome’ versus the narrower
tests of consistency and conformity under the current system.
Aside from the proposed legislative changes, the government also announced they will be;



closing the Local Planning Appeal Support Centre (LPASC), which was meant to guide
citizens through the LPAT and planning appeals process, as of June 30, 2019, and
providing LPAT with $1 million in order to appoint more adjudicators to clear the current
backlog of appeals.

Staff Response – staff are generally supportive in principle of the proposed changes to the
LPAT Act; however would note that municipalities have never really had the opportunity to fully
experience the new LPAT system and therefore the new LPAT system may in fact be better
than the proposed changes to LPAT. County staff recommend that more time be given to
experience the new LPAT process and then do a review of that process say one year from now
to see if any changes are required by consulting with municipalities, agencies, developers, and
the public.
The provisions which may require mediation appear to be a positive change, as mediation is
generally favourable to having to go to a contested hearing. Limiting participants to written
statements would also appear to still give an opportunity for participation, while limiting overall
timing of a hearing.
The changes to the LPAT would appear to limit the instances where a decision gets sent back
to a municipal council for a new decision, which may be perceived as a ‘step backwards’. Staff
have no firm opinion on this matter, as we never had the opportunity to experience this process
under the current LPAT system. County staff recommend that this process remain in the LPAT
Act so that municipalities can test this process to see if it is beneficial for all parties involved.
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Allowing for planning decisions to be made based on the best possible planning outcome would
appear to be reasonable, but could lead to greater uncertainty on the types of decisions that get
made. For example, if the Tribunal were to grant a decision which attempts to appease all
parties, rather than a decision which best aligns with the current planning policy it could lead to
unpredictable decisions.
Staff’s biggest concern is the transition provision regarding how appealed decisions are dealt
with. Currently there are some appeals still being processed under the former OMB system and
some appeals processed under the current LPAT system. If the new changes are to add a ‘third
category’ it could further confuse matters for municipalities, the public, and adjudicators.
Staff are supportive of efforts to try to deal with appeal matters in a timelier manner, provide
new appeals are not ‘jumping the queue’ over existing matters under appeal. As an example,
the County recently had a hearing scheduled for a matter in July 2020. Should the new monies
be provided to clear the backlog, perhaps existing appeals could be moved forward, and future
appeals could fill some of those timeslots previously booked for existing appeals in 2020.

Development Charges Act Changes and Staff Response
Schedule 3 of Bill 108 contains proposed amendments to the Development Charges (DC) Act.
There are three key changes to the Act regarding secondary suites, soft services and
administrative matters.
1. Secondary suites exempted
The proposed changes to the DC Act would exempt the creation of a secondary suite in new
residential buildings from development charges including second units within ancillary dwellings.
The classes of residential buildings that will be eligible for this exemption will be prescribed in
regulation.
Staff response – Secondary suites are a good opportunity to be able to assist homeowners
with the costs of housing. By permitting a secondary unit it allows homeowners to collect
revenue to help offset their housing costs. Secondary suites are also a good way to increase
the amount of affordable rental housing throughout Grey County. Grey County’s current DC Bylaws exempt secondary units within and attached to existing residential dwellings. Council has
also supported in principle revisions to the DC By-law that would exempt secondary units within
detached buildings (i.e. ancillary buildings and structures such as coach and laneway house or
a secondary unit above a detached garage). County staff therefore recommend supporting the
proposed DC exemptions for secondary units.
2. Changes to Development Charge treatment of ‘Soft Services’
As noted under the proposed changes to the Planning Act, the Province is proposing to replace
bonusing provisions with something that is called a Community Benefit Charge (CBC). Under
the new CBC, municipalities will be able to charge developers directly for community benefits
such as libraries and daycare facilities. The new CBC would also replace discounted
services/soft services from the DC Act and therefore only hard services/infrastructure costs and
other prescribed eligible costs would be eligible for collection through DC’s including roads,
water, wastewater (sewer), stormwater, transit, waste diversion and the protection services of
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policing and fire. It appears that the proposed charges permitted under the CBC would be
capped based on a portion of the appraised value of land.
Staff Response - Currently discounted services/soft services collected under the County DC
include growth capital costs associated with paramedic services, provincial offences, trails,
growth related studies (e.g. growth management plans), and growth-related capital costs
associated with the Grey Bruce Health Unit. Road infrastructure currently represents over 90%
of the County’s DC and therefore this proposed changed would have minimal impact to the
County compared to other municipalities. This change will likely cause certain ‘soft services’
being underfunded or require additional funds from the general levy.
Some of the ‘soft services’ identified as examples under the new CBC are currently
administered by the County (e.g. daycare facilities) and therefore it is not clear as to how
administratively the new CBC would work. For example, if a CBC is set for new daycare
facilities, are local municipalities able to collect this charge and transfer to the County? Can the
County collect the CBC if parkland dedication is being collected by a local municipality? Once
collected, are there limitations on how and where the charges collected can be utilized? More
information regarding the proposed new CBC is necessary to determine if this would adequately
address the growth-related costs related to ‘soft-services’. Ultimately, County staff would like
the new CBC to maintain the level of charges collected for growth-related soft services that are
currently eligible under the DC Act. It is important to ensure that growth continues to pay for
growth and that any increases required to soft-services from growth is not being paid by existing
tax payers.
3. Administration
There are proposed changes as to when development charge rates would be calculated.
Currently, development charge rates are determined at the time when the first building permit is
issued. The proposed changes to the Act would ‘freeze’ development charge rates earlier on in
the development process (e.g. when an application is made for a site plan or zoning approval).
Development charges would continue to be paid at the time of building permit issuance,
however the DC rate could be lower than what would normally be collected. Municipalities are
able to charge interest from the time the DC rate has been frozen until time of payment of the
DC.
There are also proposed changes to DC’s regarding rental housing, institutional, industrial,
commercial, and non-profit housing developments. For these types of developments, the DC’s
would be paid in six equal annual instalments with the first installment starting at the earlier of
either issuance of occupancy permit and the date the building is first occupied. Municipalities
will be able to charge interest from the time of building permit issuance up to the maximum
amount prescribed. Any front-ending/deferral payment agreements reached prior to the Act
coming into force will be preserved.
Staff Response – with respect to the proposed changes as to when the DC rate would be
calculated, what this likely means is that there will be less DC’s collected. DC’s generally
increase over time, especially in areas where growth continues to increase. Within Grey
County, we have been experiencing overall growth which has resulted in DC’s increasing over
time in order for the increased growth to pay for growth related costs. If DC rates are calculated
earlier on in the process, this will likely mean that the DC’s to be collected would be lower than
expected. At the same time, by ‘freezing’ DC rates at time of application submission it provides
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developers with greater certainty as to what the DC’s they will be paying at time of building
permit. One concern is tracking the DC rates to be paid as some developments do not require a
site plan and/or zoning amendment and therefore there will be different DC rates that will need
to be tracked for each development. This could add administrative costs to tracking the various
DC rates and may require a technological solution (i.e. software) to help track these different
rates for each development. Currently, County DC’s are collected by local municipalities and
therefore if these proposed Act changes were approved, the County would work with local
municipalities on determining the best way to track and monitor the DC rates for various
developments.
With respect to the proposed changes to DC’s regarding rental housing, institutional, industrial,
commercial, and non-profit housing developments. What this means is that the full DC will be
collected eventually, it will just be delayed. This has a similar effect as a deferral agreement
which municipalities are currently able to consider. Municipalities will be able to charge interest
from time of building permit and the interest rate will be determined by regulation. County staff
recommend that the interest rate identified through regulation use a standard index rate tied to
inflationary costs.
County staff generally have no concerns with these proposed changes, however this could add
to the administrative costs noted above for tracking when occupancy has occurred. If an
occupancy permit is required, then tracking this should be less of an issue; however if an
occupancy permit is not required the responsibility rests with the owner to notify the municipality
within 5 business days that occupancy has occurred. Who is going to track and enforce these
situations and what administrative costs will result from this tracking and enforcement?
Council has supported in principle looking at exempting rental housing and non-profit housing
developments from a County DC and therefore the proposed changes would not have an impact
to this proposed DC By-law change. The County currently does not collect a DC for industrial,
commercial and institutional developments and therefore the proposed changes to the Act will
not have an impact for the County. Current deferral agreements would not be impacted by the
proposed changes to the Act.
Some other proposed changes include:
4. Removing the 10 per cent statutory deduction for waste diversion capital costs (not
including landfill sites, landfill services, or incineration). This means that local
municipalities will be able to collect the full waste diversion capital costs for growth
related costs. We believe that the Province is considering this change to allow local
municipalities to collect more DC’s for green bin programs which is being encouraged in
the Made in Ontario Environment Plan. This is a positive change in our opinion.
5. Exempting the conversion of communal areas to residential units in rental buildings from
development charges. This would allow communal areas within existing residential
buildings to be converted to residential units without triggering a DC. County staff
generally have no concerns with this proposed amendment as it would enable more
rental housing to be created.
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Environmental Assessment Act Changes and Staff Response
The Province is proposing to increase the exemptions for low risk activities within the municipal
Class EA process. These may include activities such as installing speed bumps, de-icing, street
scaping, etc. County staff support exempting low risk activities within the municipal Class EA
process as it will help to speed-up infrastructure improvements and help to reduce overall costs
for certain projects.

Endangered Species Act Changes and Staff Response
See Addendum to Staff Report PDR-CW-14-19

Conservation Authorities Act Changes and Staff Response
The proposed changes to the Conservation Authority Act (CAA) released as part of Schedule 2
of Bill 108 are consistent with the proposed changes identified in the earlier ERO posting (site
ERO) and summarized in County staff report PDR-CW-22-19. Further detail has been provided
with these legislative changes, including the proposed change regarding non-mandatory
services. The proposed CAA changes indicate that conservation authorities (CA’s) will continue
to be authorized to provide other programs and services beyond their core services (i.e. nonmandatory services). If financing by a participating municipality is required to provide these
non-mandatory programs, CA’s and the participating municipality must enter into an agreement
in order for the CA to provide the program or service. This could include providing comments
on development applications related to natural heritage for example. The CA will be prohibited
from including capital costs and operating expenses for these programs and services if no such
agreement has been entered into on and after a day prescribed by regulation. CA’s will be
required to prepare and implement a transition plan in order to ensure compliance with this
requirement when it takes effect.
Staff Response - Based on the proposed changes to the CAA, municipalities will need to enter
into agreements with the CA’s in order for CA’s to continue to offer non-core programs and
services. This could lead to an inconsistent delivery of programs and services throughout a
watershed as some municipalities may opt in for certain programs and services while others
may not. For those that opt in, the cost to continue these programs and services could increase
if not all municipalities were to opt in. This could lead to a reduction in programs and services
being offered by CA’s as they may not have a collective mass to continue certain programs and
services. This will require a coordinated response and determination for what programs and
services municipalities will want CA’s to continue to provide beyond core mandated services.
Grey Sauble Conservation Authority currently manages County Forests and County Trails under
a contract agreement with Grey County. This is a ‘fee for service’ agreement. The proposal is
to renew this agreement contract in 2019 and therefore it will be important to structure this
agreement to address any changes to the legislation.
CA’s provide key programs and services that protect our watersheds and therefore it is
important that municipalities collectively support these programs and services in order for our
watersheds to continue to be healthy.
CA’s will also be authorized to determine the amounts owed by municipalities in relation to
programs and services that the CA provides in respect of the Clean Water Act (i.e. source
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protection plans). What this likely means is that the Province will no longer be providing funding
for the implementation and enforcement of Source Protection Plans and instead these will be
fully funded by local municipalities with the services being offered by the CA’s.

Ontario Heritage Act Changes and Staff Response
Schedule 11 of Bill 108 contains proposed amendments to the Ontario Heritage Act. The main
amendment in this section proposes to provide an owner of a property the right to object being
placed on a municipal registry, which lists all properties that have been designated, or
properties that have not been designated but have a heritage value. Property owners can now
provide notice of objections to the municipal councils as to whether a property should continue
to be included on the registry. Property owners would have the ability to appeal any council
decision to the LPAT. Other proposed amendments to the Act includes changes around the
process and timelines in which a municipal council may designate a property, changes to the
definition of ‘alter’ and ‘alteration’ and amending section 34 and 34.5 to restrict the demolition or
removal of any attribute associated with heritage value.
Staff Response – Based on the proposed changes, property owners would now have more
influence over heritage designations on their property. Providing owners with the ability to
provide notice of objection allows more transparency throughout the designation process and
gives owners the ability to voice concerns before the property is placed on the registry. While
County planning staff are supportive of these changes we recognize that the need for property
owners to object to being placed on the registry will seldom occur. Municipalities within the
County tend to have extensive consultation with property owners regarding designation and
would seek positive feedback before placing a property on the registry. While County staff
appreciate and are supportive of appeals rights to property owners, staff do not foresee these
rights being exercised as hostile heritage designations are rarely supported by municipal council
and staff. Overall, the proposed amendments are seeking to provide property owners with
legislative appeal rights in rare instances of when municipal staff are in disagreement with
owners regarding heritage designation.

General Comments
Based on the nature of the legislative changes being proposed, and the potential for both
positive and negative impacts, the Province should consider a more robust consultation on
these proposed changes. The current Environmental Registry posting was posted on May 2nd
and comments are due by June 1st. This short timeframe does not give municipalities and other
stakeholders much time to (a) respond, (b) ask questions, or (c) consult. Staff would
recommend that the consultation period be extended to at least 90 days, to allow for a more
robust consultation on these topics.
Committee of the Whole supported staff reports Addendum to PDR-CW-14-19, regarding the
Endangered Species Act changes, and PDR-CW-22-19, regarding the Conservation Authority
Act changes, at their May 9th, 2019 meeting. A copy of these County staff reports can be found
in the Attachments section of this report. These comments will not be reiterated in this Report,
unless there are any new comments arising from the additional materials provided through Bill
108.
In addition, the Committee also endorsed the following motion as it pertains to the Conservation
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Authority Act changes.
“WHEREAS Climate Change and flooding are mounting threats in Grey and
Conservation Authorities provide services including real-time flood forecasting,
emergency planning support and water-related studies; and
WHEREAS, in 1996, the total provincial Section 39 Transfer Payment to all of Ontario’s
conservation authorities for Flood and Erosion Control and Natural Hazard Prevention
was reduced from $50-million to $7.4-million, and Grey Sauble Conservation Authority’s
and Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority’s share of this payment has remained static
at $71,779 and $157,669 since 1996; and
WHEREAS the recent Provincial Budget has further reduced Grey Sauble Conservation
Authority’s and Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority’s Section 39 Transfer Payments
about 50% to $37,055 and $81,396; and
WHEREAS this will affect emergency management supports and municipal planning,
zoning, and development input provided by Grey Sauble Conservation Authority and
Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority; and
WHEREAS there is a provincial role in province-wide flood risks reduction and
emergency management, and investments in prevention can potentially avoid or reduce
losses to life and property and major expenditures during and after an emergency; and
WHEREAS the Ontario Government’s Proposal on the Environmental Registry of
Ontario 013-5018 on Modernizing Conservation Authority (CA) Operations proposes to
define a limited list of the core mandatory programs and services for CAs; and
THAT Grey County recognizes the value provided by the work of the CAs, supports the
current multi-municipality governance model for the selection of programs, and the
current municipal levying approach that includes annual input from Local Municipal
Councils; and
THAT Grey County recommends that the province acknowledge their strong and positive
provincial role in flood risk reduction programs and reinstate funding to CAs; and
THAT Grey County Staff be directed to provide a copy of this resolution to the
Environmental Registry of Ontario prior to the May 20th deadline, to Ministers Bill Walker
and Lisa Thompson, Ministers MECP, MNRF and MOF, the Premier, AMO, ROMA,
OSUM, and Conservation Ontario.”

Legal and Legislated Requirements
The effect of new legislative changes can sometimes be tough to predict at this early stage, as
some of the future changes will be implemented through Regulation. Some of the changes are
welcomed by the County, however there are changes that cause concern, or are difficult to
interpret at this stage.

Financial and Resource Implications
At this stage there are no immediate financial or resource implications to this discussion paper,
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as the full details of its implementation are not known.
Staff will continue to monitor Bill 108 and keep County Council aware of any major changes, or
regulatory changes.

Relevant Consultation
☒ Internal: Planning, Transportation Services, Housing, Legal Services, Corporate

Services and CAO.
☒ External: Member Municipalities and Conservation Authorities within Grey (to be circulated
following Committee of the Whole)

Appendices and Attachments
Staff Report PDR-CW-22-19
Addendum to Staff Report PDR-CW-14-19
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

PDR-CW-25-19

Title:

Recolour Grey – Draft Provincial Modifications

Prepared by:

County Planning Staff

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove

Lower Tier(s) Affected: All Municipalities
Status:

Recommendation
1.

That Report PDR-CW-25-19 be received which provides a summary of
the draft modifications proposed by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs;
and

2.

That staff be directed to provide the comments outlined in the attached
‘Appendix A – Recolour Grey Provincial Modifications Chart’ to the
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing staff for their consideration
prior to issuing a final decision; and

3.

That staff be authorized to proceed prior to County Council approval as
per Section 25.6 (b) of Procedural By-law 5003-18.

Executive Summary
County Council adopted Recolour Grey, the County’s new Official Plan, in October
2018. The Province has reviewed the plan, commended the County for the
collaborative approach taken during development and is proposing only minor
modifications as part of their final decision. County staff generally have no objections to
the proposed changes and are recommending some minor revisions to add further
clarity and to in some cases to maintain original intent of the adopted policies. The final
version of the Official Plan also includes modifications brought forward by Grey to
address some errors and omissions that staff identified post-adoption. It is
recommended that the comments identified in the draft modifications chart attached to
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this Report be sent to Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing staff for their
consideration prior to issuing a final decision.

Background and Discussion
County Council adopted Recolour Grey, the County’s new Official Plan, on October 25,
2018. Following Council’s adoption, the Official Plan was sent to the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing for approval. On May 9, 2019, County staff received
correspondence from Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing staff which included a
chart with draft modifications that the Ministry is proposing to Recolour Grey. Attached
to this report is the correspondence and the draft modifications chart from the Ministry.
Ministry staff have asked for comments from the County by May 24th.
County staff have reviewed the proposed modifications and generally have no
objections to the proposed changes. County staff have recommended some minor
wording changes to some of the proposed modifications to add some further clarity.
County staff also recommend revising Appendix E as it appears that there are some
areas where the Bedrock and Shale Resource Areas overlap with designated
Settlement Areas and it was the intent that these areas not overlap. There are some
proposed changes that would delete some text (e.g. proposed Modification 6 and 8) and
County staff are recommending that some of this text be kept as it adds further clarity to
the policies. All the comments from County staff can be found in the proposed
modifications chart attached to this Report.
Some of the proposed modifications include suggested modifications made by County
staff based on some errors and omissions we have identified following adoption of the
Plan. These include the following:
1. Revisions to Schedule C – Natural Heritage System – Cores and Linkages.
Following adoption, staff noticed that there were still some areas where the
Cores and Linkages mapping overlapped certain Settlement Area Designations.
The intent was that Cores and Linkages would be removed where they overlap
designated Settlement Areas and therefore it was recommended that Schedule C
be revised. County staff also received some comments from a landowner
following adoption recommending that we consider revising the location of a
Linkage east of Maxwell. Upon further review with the Grey Sauble Conservation
Authority (GSCA) staff, GSCA identified a watercourse near the proposed
Linkage and therefore we recommended a slight alternation to the Linkage to
follow this watercourse which exists just north of the rural residential lots. The
Province has addressed these recommended changes through proposed
Modification 21.
2. Following adoption, County staff received some Hazard Land mapping revisions
from Grey Sauble Conservation Authority (GSCA) for a property near Big Bay.
PDR-CW-25-19
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GSCA staff were working with a landowner in that area to refine the mapping to
make it more accurate. Based on the revisions received, Grey County staff
recommended that Secondary Schedule Map 1b be replaced to show this
updated hazard land mapping. The Province has addressed this recommended
change through proposed Modification 18.
3. Comments were received post adoption concerning parcel mapping shown on
Secondary Schedule 3n – Ayton in that there was a concern that the parcel
mapping was not depicted correctly. We have updated the parcel mapping using
the latest Ownership Parcel data from Teranet. It was recommended that
Secondary Schedule Map 3n – Ayton be replaced with the revised parcel
mapping. The Province has addressed this recommended change in proposed
Modification 20.
4. West Grey – Industrial Business Park designation (Schedule A – Map 3). When
the Hazard Lands were changed, a portion of the existing Industrial Business
Park should have been mapped to match what exists on the ground. We
recommended that Schedule A – Map 3 be replaced to show the correct
boundary of the existing Industrial Business Park area as a result of the Hazard
Land mapping being revised previously. The Province has addressed this
recommended change in proposed Modification 20.
5. Staff recommended some minor wording changes to Section 5.2.1(1)(g) to clarify
that this only applies to segments of the population whose primary means of
transportation is horse and buggy and active transportation and not just active
transportation (i.e. replacing ‘or’ with ‘and’ and rearranging the wording). The
Province addressed this recommended change in proposed Modification 5.
County staff greatly appreciate the Province’s inclusion of the County recommended
modifications in their draft modification list. Once the Province has approved the Official
Plan, the decision is final and the Province’s decision can no longer be appealed based
on the most recent changes to the Planning Act.
It is recommended that the comments provided in the draft modifications chart attached
to this Report be sent to the Province for their consideration. Given the due date for
comments, it is recommended that staff proceed with sharing these comments prior to
the formal adoption by Council as per Section 25.6(b) of Procedural By-law 5003-18.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
Planning Act including the Provincial Policy Statement

Financial and Resource Implications
None
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Relevant Consultation
☒

Internal (CAO, Clerks)

☐

External (list)

Appendices and Attachments
Ministry Correspondence dated May 9, 2019 which includes draft modifications to
Recolour Grey – County’s Adopted Official Plan (Attached)

PDR-CW-25-19

4

131

Date: May 23, 2019

PDR-CW-25-19

5

132

Date: May 23, 2019

PDR-CW-25-19

6

133

Date: May 23, 2019

#

1

Official Plan
Policy/
Schedule
Policy 3.4
19)

2

Policy 3.4.2
2) b)

3

Policy 3.4.3

Provincial
Legislation/
Policy
PPS s. 6.0

Ministry Staff comments

The deletion of the sentence “In cases where
local municipalities do not have official plans and
where employment lands are being reallocated,
a zoning by-law amendment would initiate a
comprehensive review.” is consistent with the
PPS definition of comprehensive review, which
is an official plan review or official plan
amendment and not a zoning by-law
amendment.
PPS policy
The replacement of the phrase “not encouraged,
1.1.3.8 c) 1.
and will only be considered as a last resort,
where all other avoidance and mitigation
measures have been exhausted” with “not
permitted” is consistent with PPS policy 1.1.3.8
c) 1., which prohibits settlement area boundary
expansions into specialty crop areas.
Municipal Act The replacement of this policy clarifies the
s. 173 and
Minister’s role in municipal restructuring
PPS policy
proposals (i.e., Minister’s orders for annexations
1.1.3.8
and amalgamations) set out in Section 173 of
the Municipal Act and is consistent with the PPS
policy 1.1.3.8 requirement for a comprehensive
review to justify any proposed expansion of a
settlement area.

Proposed Modification for Consideration

Grey County comments

In policy 3.4 19), delete the sentence “In cases where
local municipalities do not have official plans and where
employment lands are being reallocated, a zoning by-law
amendment would initiate a comprehensive review.”

No concerns but it does leave those without official plans more
‘leeway’ than those that have gone through an exercise to
designate employment lands in their municipal official plan.

In policy 3.4.2 2) b), delete the phrase “not encouraged,
and will only be considered as a last resort, where all
other avoidance and mitigation measures have been
exhausted” and replace it with the phrase “not permitted”.

While it has the potential to impact settlement areas like Thornbury,
this is clearly a PPS consistency issue, and therefore the Province
is justified in making this change.

In policy 3.4.3, delete the policy in its entirety and replace it
with “Municipal restructuring is a process under the
Municipal Act to alter municipal boundaries through
annexation and amalgamation. Annexations alter
municipal boundaries by moving jurisdiction for land from
one municipality to another. Amalgamations are mergers
of neighbouring municipalities. A local municipality may,
subject to the requirements of the Municipal Act, make a
restructuring proposal by submitting a restructuring report
to the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing.
Municipal restructuring may only occur through a Minister’s
order, at the Minister’s discretion.
Following a restructuring order from the Minister, a
comprehensive review would be required to justify any
proposed expansion of a settlement area, as per Section
3.4.2 of this Plan.”

No concerns.
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4

5

Policy 4.5.1
2)

Policy 5.2.1
1)

Ontario
Heritage Act
O. Reg
170/04 and
PPS policy
2.6

Ministry of Tourism Culture and Sport records
indicate that registered marine archaeological
sites are located within the County. The addition
of a new bullet requiring a marine archaeological
assessment for planning applications or
infrastructure projects located at or below the
high-water mark complies with O. Reg 170/04
under the Ontario Heritage Act and is consistent
with PPS policy 2.6.2 regarding archaeological
resources.

PPS policy
2.3.6.1 b)
and
Guideline
#37 of
OMAFRA
Publication
853

The replacement of bullet g) at the request of
Grey County staff clarifies that institutional uses
on existing lots may be permitted, subject to
PPS policy 2.3.6.1 b) criteria, for communities
whose primary means of transportation is by
horse and buggy and active transportation. This
modification is aligned with Guideline #37 of
OMAFRA Publication 853: The Minimum
Separation (MDS) Document, which considers
existing, new and expanding churches, schools
and cemeteries intended to serve communities
reliant on horse-drawn vehicles as a
predominate mode of transportation to be
considered as Type A (less sensitive) land uses
for the purposes of MDS and is also consistent
with PPS policy 2.3.6.1 b) regarding limited nonresidential uses in prime agricultural areas.

In policy 4.5.1 2), add a new sixth bullet with the following
wording: “The County shall, prior to approving planning
applications or infrastructure projects impacting areas at or
below the high- water mark of any body of water, require a
marine archaeological assessment to be conducted by a
licensed marine archaeologist, pursuant to the Ontario
Heritage Act. Any marine archaeological resource that is
identified shall be reported to the Ministry of Tourism,
Culture and Sport.”

While this appears onerous on the face of it, if it only applies to
applications or infrastructure projects below the high-water mark
then it really should not impact that many applications, or Countylevel infrastructure projects. This policy makes sense in the scope
of major projects but should not be interpreted to include every new
dock or shoreline well installation across the County (though
typically we would not see planning applications for docks or
shoreline wells).

In policy 5.2.1 1), delete bullet g) and replace it with
No concerns – County staff requested this minor modification.
“Institutional uses on existing lots, serving those segments Not sure if municipalities that have harbours, ports, or water lines
of the population whose primary means of transportation is into Georgian Bay would have concerns or not.
via horse and buggy and active transportation, subject to
policy 5.2.2(4)(b);”.
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6

Policies 5.2.3 PPS policies
1) a) and
2.3.4.1 a)
5.2.3 3)
and 2.3.4.2

This modification clarifies that, for consent to
sever a farm lot smaller than 40 hectares, an
agricultural report is required to demonstrate that
smaller farm lots sizes are appropriate and
economically viable, which is consistent with
PPS policy 2.3.4.1 a) regarding lot creation for
agricultural uses in prime agricultural areas.
Additionally, the modification clarifies that lot
adjustments in prime agricultural areas may only
be permitted for legal or technical reasons in
accordance with PPS policy 2.3.4.2.

In policy 5.2.3 1) a), delete the phrase “smaller farm lot” and No concerns with the modification to 5.2.3 1) a).
replace it with the phrase “farm lot smaller than 40
hectares”. In policy 5.2.3 3), delete the policy in its entirety
and replace it with the following wording: “Lot adjustments in
With respect to 2.3.4.2, the Provincial modification is consistent with
the Agricultural land use type may only be permitted for
the PPS. However, the wording in the adopted Recolour Grey
legal or technical reasons.”
County Plan offers more explanation as to when such lot additions
may be appropriate and what justification is required. The Provincial
wording can lead to unintended policy interpretation issues as to
what the term ‘minor boundary adjustments’ means. For example,
farmer ‘A’ has 60 hectares and farmer ‘B’ has an abutting farm with
40 hectares. Farmer A wishes to sell farmer B 20 hectares to add
onto their existing 40 hectares. The end result of the land
transaction is that both farms would still meet County policies of
maintaining farm sizes of generally 40 hectares or greater, and
therefore would be supported. However, staff have been
questioned as to whether a 20-hectare addition can be considered
a ‘minor boundary adjustment’. Staff can ‘live with’ the Provincial
modification as it is the direct wording from the PPS, but prefer the
wording as adopted in Recolour Grey as it provides further clarity.

7

Policy 5.3.2
4)

PPS policy
1.1.3.8 c) 1

In policy 5.3.2 4), delete the phrase “, unless there is
no other alternative outside of the Special Agricultural
land use type”.

While it has the potential to impact settlement areas like Thornbury,
this is clearly a PPS consistency issue, and therefore the Province
is justified in making this change.

8

Policy 5.3.3
3)

PPS policy
2.3.4.2

The deletion of the phrase “, unless there is no
other alternative outside of the Special
Agricultural land use type” is consistent with
PPS policy 1.1.3.8 c) 1., which prohibits
settlement area boundary expansions into
specialty crop areas.
The replacement of this policy clarifies that lot
adjustments in specialty crop areas may only be
permitted for legal or technical reasons, in
accordance with PPS policy 2.3.4.2.

In policy 5.3.3 3), delete the policy in its entirety and
replace it with the following wording: “Lot adjustments in
the Special Agricultural land use type may only be
permitted for legal or technical reasons.”

See comments on modification # 6 above.

9

Policy 5.6.2
6)

PPS policy
2.5.2.4

This modification reflects the wording of PPS
policy 2.5.2.4 regarding the protection of mineral
aggregate operations from development that
would preclude or hinder their expansion or
continued use.

In policy 5.6.2 6), delete the phrase “future aggregate
extraction” after the word “hinder” and replace it with the
phrase “expansion or continued use” .

No concerns provided the term “of aggregate operations” is added
after “continued use”. The Provincial modification as worded does
not make it clear what is being expanded or what use is being
continued.
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10 Policy
5.6.2.7 a)

PPS policy
2.5.2.5

The replacement of “aggregate operation” with
the defined term “aggregate resource area”
clarifies the purpose of the policy and is
consistent with PPS policy 2.5.2.5 regarding the
protection of lands adjacent to mineral
aggregate resources.

In policy 5.6.2.7 a), delete the phrase “aggregate operation”
and replace it with the italicized term “aggregate resource
area”.

The County wording in Recolour Grey is currently unclear, but the
Provincial modification wording could also lead to interpretation
issues. As the aggregate resource areas may extend well beyond
the property boundaries of the proposed development. The wording
should be changed as follows:
In policy 5.6.2.7 a), delete the phrase “aggregate operation” and
replace it with the italicized term “proposed non-agricultural uses or
non-farm sized lot creation”.

11 Policy 5.6.2
11)

This modification further clarifies that lot
adjustments in prime agricultural areas and
specialty crop areas may only be permitted for
legal or technical reasons, in accordance with
PPS policy 2.3.4.2.

In policy 5.6.2 11), add the following new sentence after
the existing policy: “Lot adjustments in the Agricultural land
use type and Special Agricultural land use type may only
be permitted for legal or technical reasons.”

No concerns.

12 Policies 5.6.5 PPS policies
5) and 5.6.5
2.3.3.3,
11)
2.5.3.1, and
2.5.4.1

This modification clarifies the purpose of the
policy and identifies “agricultural condition” as a
defined term, which is consistent with PPS
policies 2.3.3.3, 2.5.3.1, and 2.5.4.1 regarding
aggregate extraction and rehabilitation in prime
agricultural areas.

In policy 5.6.5 5), add the phrase “the requirement” after
the word “trigger”. In policy
5.6.5 11), italicise both instances of the term
“agricultural condition”.

No concerns.

13 Policy 5.6.6
2)

The replacement of this sentence adds the
requirement to protect Bedrock and Shale
Resource Areas identified in Appendix E, subject
to criteria, which is consistent with PPS policy
2.5.2.5.

In policy 5.6.6 2), delete the sentence “This mapping will
not be used to assess site-specific development
applications at this stage.” and replace with the following
sentence: “Within Bedrock and Shale Resource Areas
shown on Appendix E and on adjacent lands, development
and activities which would preclude or hinder the
establishment of new operations or access to the
resources shall only be permitted if resource use would not
be feasible; or the proposed land use or development
serves a greater long-term public interest; and issues of
public health, public safety and environmental impact are
addressed.”

County staff had raised concerns about the lack of public
consultation on this mapping and the impacts. That said, the
Province is correct that the PPS requires said policy.

The replacement of the phrase “Wildland Fire
Assessment and Mitigation Standards” with
“Hazardous Forest Types for Wildland Fire”
corrects a technical error and clarifies the intent
of the policy, which is consistent with PPS policy
3.1.8 regarding wildland fires.

In policy 7.8, delete the term “Wildland Fire Assessment
and Mitigation Standards” before the phrase “are
defined as forest types” and replace it with the italicised
term “Hazardous Forest Types for Wildland Fire”.

No concerns.

14 Policy 7.8

PPS policy
2.3.4.2

PPS policy
2.5.2.5

PPS policy
3.1.8

Upon further review of the Bedrock and Shale Resource Area
mapping, there appears to be some overlap with some of the
Settlement Area designations. The intent was to remove the
Bedrock and Shale Resource Areas where they overlapped with a
designated Settlement Area. As such, County staff recommend
that Appendix E be replaced with a revised Appendix E to ensure
that these areas do not overlap Settlement Areas. See revised
Appendix E attached to this Report.
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15 Policy 8.11.1
(Significant
Threats)

South
Georgian
Bay Lake
Simcoe
Source
Protection
Plan

This modification corrects a typographical error
by renumbering the second occurrence of policy
8.11.1, as this policy number occurs twice in the
adopted new Plan. Additionally, the modification
clarifies that some Source Protection Plans,
namely the South Georgian Bay Lake Simcoe
Source Protection Plan, contain low or moderate
threat policies (e.g., Policy number LUP-5
encouraging master environmental servicing
plans as part of a complete application) that
apply to decisions under the Planning Act and
Condominium Act. The modification complies
with the South Georgian Bay Lake Simcoe
Source Protection Plan.

In the second instance of policy 8.11.1, in relation to
significant threats, renumber this policy “8.11.2”. In
renumbered policy 8.11.2 1), delete the word “no” after the
phrase “generally have” and replace it with the word “few”.
Delete the sentence “A future official plan amendment to
this Plan may consider including implementing policies and
mapping associated with significant groundwater recharge
areas and/or highly vulnerable aquifers if recommended
through the local source protection plans.”

No concerns.
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16 Policy 9.18

PPS s. 6.0

The definitions of agricultural land use type,
areas of archaeological potential,
comprehensive review, prime agricultural area,
and rural land use type are modified to improve
consistency with PPS section 6 definitions.
Additionally, the PPS definitions of hazardous
forest types for wildland fire and rural lands are
added as new definitions to improve consistency
with the PPS.

In policy 9.18, modify the following definitions:

No concerns.

In the definition of AGRICULTURAL LAND USE TYPE,
delete the term “prime agricultural lands” after the phrase
“Any new or revised mapping of” and replace it with the
italicised term “prime agricultural areas”.

County staff recommend that the definition for ‘Wildland Fire’ be
removed from Section 9.18 as it is being replaced by the added
definition of ‘Hazardous Forest Types for Wildland Fire’.

In the definition of AREAS OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL
POTENTIAL, delete the
phrase “Criteria for determining” and replace it with the
phrase “Methods to identify”.
In bullet 6) of the definition of COMPREHENSIVE
REVIEW, delete the phrase “, unless otherwise
unavoidable”.
Add the following new definition after the definition of
HAZARD LANDS: “HAZARDOUS FOREST TYPES FOR
WILDLAND FIRE means
forest types assessed as being associated with the risk of
high to extreme wildland fire using risk assessment tools
established by the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources
and Forestry, as amended from time to time.”
In the definition of PRIME AGRICULTURAL AREA, delete
the word “soils” and replace it with the word “lands”.
In the definition of RURAL LAND USE TYPE, delete the
term “prime agricultural areas” and replace it with the
italicised term “prime agricultural lands”. Italicise the
following terms: “settlement areas”, “rural lands”, and
“natural heritage features and areas”.

17 Policy 10.4

Ontario
Heritage Act

The deletion of this bullet addresses that the
Cultural Heritage Area designation was removed
from Secondary Schedule 1q prior to Council
adoption of the new Plan and conforms to the
Ontario Heritage Act.

Add the following new definition after the definition of
RURAL LAND USE TYPE: “RURAL LANDS means lands
which are located outside settlement areas and which are
outside prime agricultural areas.
In policy 10.4, delete the bullet “Cultural Heritage Area”.

No concerns in principle, as such lands are no longer shown on
schedule 1q, however staff would note that policies for such lands
are still included in section 10.4.5 of Recolour Grey.
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18 Schedule A – Niagara
Map 1 and
Escarpment
Secondary
Plan
Schedule
Map 1b – Big
Bay

The replacement of Schedule A – Map 1 and
Secondary Schedule Map 1b – Big Bay was
requested by Grey County staff. Revised
schedules were received post-adoption from the
County and contain updated Grey Sauble
Conservation Authority (GSCA) hazard mapping.
Additionally, at the request of the Niagara
Escarpment Commission, the text following the
double asterisk at the bottom of Schedule A –
Map 1 was revised by deleting the word
“settlement” to clarify that certain areas outside
of settlement areas within the NEP boundary
may be subject to Development Control.

Schedule A – Map 1 is deleted and replaced with
Schedule A – Map 1 in Appendix A. Secondary Schedule
Map 1b – Big Bay is deleted and replaced with Secondary
Schedule Map 1b – Big Bay in Appendix A.

No concerns.

19 Schedule A – Niagara
Map 2
Escarpment
Plan

The replacement of Schedule A – Map 2 was
requested by the Niagara Escarpment
Commission. The text following the double
asterisk at the bottom of Schedule A – Map 1
was revised by deleting the word “settlement” to
clarify that certain areas outside of settlement
areas within the NEP boundary may be subject
to Development Control.

Schedule A – Map 2 is deleted and replaced with
Schedule A – Map 2 in Appendix A.

No concerns.

20 Schedule A – Niagara
Map 3 and
Escarpment
Secondary
Plan
Schedule
Map 3n –
Ayton

The replacement of Schedule A – Map 3 and
Secondary Schedule Map 3n – Ayton was
requested by Grey County staff. Revised
schedules were received post-adoption from the
County with updated Industrial Business Park
designation mapping, which was inadvertently
missed by County staff prior to Council-adoption,
and updated lot fabric mapping based on
Teranet data. Additionally, at the request of the
Niagara Escarpment Commission, the text
following the double asterisk at the bottom of
Schedule A – Map 3 was revised by deleting the
word “settlement” to clarify that certain areas
outside of settlement areas within the NEP
boundary may be subject to Development
Control.

Schedule A – Map 3 is deleted and replaced with
Schedule A – Map 3 in Appendix A. Secondary Schedule
Map 3n – Ayton is deleted and replaced with Secondary
Schedule Map 3n
– Ayton in Appendix A.

No concerns.

The replacement of Schedule C was requested
by Grey County staff. The revised schedule was
received post-adoption from the County and
removes all Core Areas that erroneously overlap
with designated settlement areas, as well as
corrects minor errors in the Natural Heritage
System Linkage mapping east of the community
of Maxwell.

Schedule C is deleted and replaced with Schedule
C in Appendix A.

No concerns.

21 Schedule C

N/A –
Technical
corrections
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

HDR-CW-06-19

Title:

10 Year Housing and Homelessness Plan – 2018 Annual Report

Prepared by:

Anne Marie Shaw, Director of Housing
Josh Gibson, Housing Programs Manager

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected:
Status:

Recommendation
1. That report HDR-CW-06-19 Grey County Housing and Homelessness Plan – 2018 Annual
Report be received.

Executive Summary
Each year an annual report on the activities undertaken in support of Grey County’s 10 Year Housing and
Homelessness Plan is provided to the province, council and the public. The report outlining 2018
achievements and goals for 2019 is attached to this report.

Background and Discussion
The Grey County 10 Year Housing and Homelessness Plan outlines the vision and direction that forms a
strategy to improve the housing and homelessness system in Grey County. The funding for the plan is
through the Investment in Affordable Housing Program and the Community Homelessness Prevention
Initiative programs through the province and Grey County. This plan coordinates Grey County and
community agencies to provide services to Grey County’s most vulnerable residents. Services are used by
families, single parent families, seniors, youth, singles, people with disabilities and working families. The
complete plan can be found on the County website at https://www.grey.ca/affordable-housing.

Highlights for 2018


Owen Sound Housing Company has 36 units of affordable housing being completed in 2018 and
2019. The units are a mix of 28 affordable units and 8 market rent units. The units are open
concept, accessible and have access to green space. Funding provided through the Investment in
Affordable Housing Program.
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Community Living Owen Sound and District built six units of affordable housing with funds
from Grey County’s Investment in Affordable Housing Program Rental Build program. All six
units are affordable self-contained units with access to a common area and supports on site.



The Homeownership Program provides a 5% down payment program towards homeownership. In
2018 the program assisted 11 households purchase a home with a total of $120,058 in funding.



The Ontario Renovates program allows residents to stay in their homes by providing a forgivable
loan for repairs and renovations. In 2018, $130,430 in funding was used for items such as roofs,
windows and doors and heating systems.



Grey County’s pilot project with the Canadian Mental Health Association to provide outreach
services to tenants of Grey County Housing to maintain and enhance their housing continues.



Grey County supported Safe n Sound by providing funding for an Outreach Worker to assist
tenants living in their transitional housing units and provide community referrals.



Grey County provides rent subsidies to the Canadian Mental Health Association to provide
options for clients that have progressed through their housing programs and move toward private
landlord agreements.



YMCA Community Services Emergency Housing Program provides services and supports to
residents of Grey County in immediate need or at risk of losing their housing. YMCA
Community services funding was increased for a much-needed additional position to assist with
growing demand for services and work with clients that require extra assistance.



Hours for emergency housing services were extended overnight for the winter months and a
partnership with the YMCA, Grey County, a local landlord and Owen Sound Police formed for
emergency housing options.



Sustainable Housing Benefit provides funding to residents of Grey County to assist in
maintaining or finding affordable housing. In 2018, $499,221 was provided to residents of Grey
County on items such as last month’s rent, utility arrears and rental arrears.



Community Enhancement Fund provides small grants to community programs to provide
resources for people at risk of homelessness. In 2018 funds were provided to community partners
to provide meals, transportation and other items and supports. One example of a community
program is a youth program run out of the Deck in Hanover to identify youth struggling with
housing issues and connect them to services and supports.



Grey County provided funding to the Giiwe project through M’Wikwedong Native Cultural
Centre. The project aims to increase awareness in community and with service delivery agencies
to improve service design and delivery and foster collaborative work with the leadership of
Indigenous-led organizations around housing and poverty related issues.



Grey County supports on average 70 residents a month with transitional housing thought the
Housing with Related Supports Program. Grey County assisted with financial subsidy for over
25,000 nights worth of accommodations totaling $604,576. These supportive housing facilities
149
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provide laundry, medication distribution, meals and assistance for residents who need some help
with managing day to day needs.


Operate and maintain 997 units of community housing throughout Grey County, continue to
provide supports to tenants, build community and maintain our buildings.

Next Steps





Update to 10 Year Housing and Homelessness Plan.
Community support system for people experiencing homelessness, focusing on those
experiencing chronic homelessness.
Continue to promote the development of affordable housing and supports.
Continue to provide equal or better level of services to residents of Grey County.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
Annual public report required by Municipal Affairs and Housing

Financial and Resource Implications
Program funding from the Community Homelessness Prevention Program ($1,816,494) and the
Investment in Affordable Housing Program ($1,325,300).

Relevant Consultation
☐ Internal:
☐ External:

Appendices and Attachments
2018 Housing and Homelessness Report
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

HDR-CW-07-19

Title:

Ontario’s Community Housing Renewal Strategy

Prepared by:

Anne Marie Shaw, Director of Housing

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove

Lower Tier(s) Affected:

All Municipalities

Status:

Recommendation
1. That report HDR-CW-07-19 pertaining to Ontario’s Community Housing Renewal
Strategy be received.

Executive Summary
Ontario’s Community Housing Renewal Strategy (CHRS) includes information about three new
programs that will roll out as part of the bilateral agreement between Ontario and the Canadian
Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) under the National Housing Strategy.
For the past three years Housing has received an average of $1.6 million dollars from the
Province for housing programs including a rental build program. The decrease in funding over
the next three years especially 2020’s allocation of $374,900 will lead to the cancellation of
some current housing programs.
This report also introduces three proposed regulatory amendments around rent geared to
income, waiting lists and community safety under the Ontario Community Housing Renewal
Strategy.

Background and Discussion
The province has announced initiatives to improve housing affordability and access to
affordable housing.
On April 17, 2019 the Province released the Ontario Community Housing Renewal Strategy.
The multi-year plan aims to:



Increase the supply and appropriate mix of affordable and adequate housing.
Improve access to affordable housing and supports to achieve housing stability.
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Improve efficiency of community housing system to ensure value for money and longterm sustainability.

The Community Housing Renewal Strategy is complemented by the Housing Supply Action
Plan which is focused on enhancing housing affordability in the broader housing market.

Funding for Three New Programs and Changes to Existing
Programs
The Province signed a bi-lateral agreement with the Canadian Mortgage and Housing
Corporation regarding the National Housing Strategy on April 30, 2018. The agreement aligns
federal funds to be used with the Ontario Community Housing Renewal Strategy. The National
Housing Strategy provides funding for nine years (2019-20 to 2017-28). The funding will be
delivered in three three-year funding periods, the first 2019-20 to 2021-22.
According to the 2019 Ontario Budget there is approximately $4 billion in federal, provincial and
municipal contributions over the next nine years under the National Housing Strategy. This
funding will support the creation of three new programs, Canada-Ontario Community Housing
Initiative, the Ontario Priorities Housing Initiative and the Canada Ontario Housing Benefit.

Canada-Ontario Community Housing Initiative (COCHI)
Canada-Ontario Community Housing Initiative (COCHI) is a new program for Community
Housing only. Community Housing is defined as social housing, affordable housing and nonprofit housing. The funds are to be used to protect affordability in community housing units
where existing agreements are ending. The funds can also to be used to support the repair and
renewal of existing community housing supply and expand supply. Funding under the CanadaOntario Social Housing Agreement has been declining. This funding is a reinvestment in funds
to be used toward capital projects.
Service Managers are required to prioritize Indigenous housing providers developed under the
Urban Native Housing Program. Grey County has five such units.

Funding Allocation
2019

2020

2021

$10,627

$32,584

$122,859

Ontario Priorities Housing Initiative (OPHI)
The Ontario Priorities Housing Initiative (OPHI) is to address local housing priorities such as
repair of existing units and new construction. These funds are to be used for existing programs
under the former Investment in Affordable Housing Program such as Homeownership Program,
Ontario Renovates Program, Rent Supplement Program and the Rental Build Program. This
funding stream has added in Supports for Rental Housing as another option for programming.
Funding Allocation
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2019

2020

2021

$723,600

$374,900

$583,600

In 2019 there is $431,500 in committed funding from the previous agreement with the Province.
This provides $1,155,100 in funding for 2019 with the combination of the former Investment in
Affordable Housing Funds and the new COCHI funds.
Existing programs will be impacted or cancelled with the existing level of funding over the next
three years.
Previous Funding Allocation Through Investment in Affordable Housing Program
2016

2017

2018

2019

$1,712,242

$1,901,458

$1,350,500

431,500

Canada Ontario Housing Benefit
The third program a Canada Ontario Housing Benefit is set to launch April 2020. Very little is
known at this time as to details around the benefit. The province has confirmed they will be
negotiating with CMHC on program design.

Proposed Regulatory Amendments
The Province is proposing regulatory amendments under the Housing Services Act, 2011 in
three areas: simplifying rent geared to income rules, improving waiting lists and creating safer
communities. The Housing Services Act, 2011 provides the legislative and regulatory framework
for social housing in Ontario. Comments are due to the Province by July 1, 2019.

Simplifying Rent Geared to Income Rules
The current rules around rent geared to income calculations are complex and difficult for tenants
to understand. The province is proposing a simpler calculation based on income tax information.
The changes would take effect as of July 2021. Other proposed changes are around year in rent
changes and income exemption for full time students.
Impact: These changes are welcome as it will provide an easier process for staff and tenants.
Rent calculations will be easier to understand for the tenant and more predictable.
The only concern with using tax information to set rents is that there are a number of tenants
who do not complete their taxes. Housing has been active in trying to encourage tenants to file
by having volunteer tax clinics on site or a list of local tax clinics available to tenants.

Improving Waiting Lists
Service Managers are designated to administer and manage waitlists for access to rent geared
to income housing in social housing. The changes being proposed to Regulation 367/11 relate
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to local eligibility rules for refusal of offers of rent geared to income housing and tenant transfers
between housing providers.
Currently a person has three refusals of housing before they no longer qualify for rent geared to
income housing. The proposed change would make households on waiting lists ineligible for
RGI assistance if they refuse their first offer of housing except in extenuating circumstances as
determined by the Service Manager.
Impact: This change would help prioritize access for those most in need. The process of
offering a unit can be time consuming as the process includes setting up viewings, verifying
assets, and giving time for a decision. In some cases, staff are offering the unit multiple times
before the unit is taken. This increases the time a unit is vacant, which makes the wait longer for
applicants and is a loss of income for the housing provider.
This change will require staff to work with the applicant to apply for appropriate properties based
on their individual needs. In the current system an applicant can put their name on every
building in the County and then often turn down a unit if it does not suit their needs.
There are exceptions to allow a household to refuse an offer without being removed from the
list. These exceptions may include hospitalization or health issues or changes in day care or
employment.
Currently if a tenant wishes to transfer to another housing provider they must go on the
centralized waitlist. This proposal would allow Service Managers greater flexibility to allow
transfers between housing providers to ensure increased efficiency. If the Service Manager
retains the ability to set internal transfer guidelines this will control the number of transfers and
ensure appropriate transfers between housing providers otherwise there could be an increase in
costs due to an increase in transfers.

Creating Safer Communities
The Province is suggesting that Service Managers be given the ability to refuse to offer a unit to
a household on the waiting list if a member of the household had previously been evicted due to
serious illegal activity. This is currently not allowed under the regulatory framework. The Service
Manager has no ability to refuse to offer a unit to a household.
Impact: The proposed change will allow Service Managers some ability to reduce crime and
violent acts in community housing and provide a safe environment in community housing.
Fortunately, Grey County does not have many incidences of serious violence or crime, but this
would provide the ability to refuse a household, so that residents feel safe in their homes.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
Link to the Community Housing Renewal Strategy and proposed regulatory changes:
https://www.ontario.ca/page/community-housing-renewal-strategy

Financial and Resource Implications
Limited programing and the cancellation of some current programs due to reduction in annual
funding.
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Relevant Consultation
☐ Internal:
☐ External:

Appendices and Attachments
None.
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Committee Report
To:

Warden Hicks and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

May 23, 2019

Subject / Report No:

PDR-CW-27-19

Title:

Power Transmission Line and Crossing Agreement on the
CP Rail Trail

Prepared by:

Scott Taylor

Reviewed by:

Randy Scherzer

Lower Tier(s) Affected:

Township of Chatsworth

Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report PDR-CW-27-19 regarding the development of an agreement with
Egerton Solar Power LP (directed by its General Partner, MPI FIT 4 Inc.) for the
purposes of allowing a portion of the County’s CP Rail Trail to be utilized for a
power transmission line and driveway crossing, to support the neighbouring solar
power facility be endorsed; and
2. That a by-law to adopt the Agreement be prepared for consideration by County
Council.

Executive Summary
The County has received a request on behalf of Egerton Solar Power LP (directed by its
General Partner, MPI Fit 4 Inc.) to permit a transmission line and driveway crossing of the CP
Rail Trail in the Township of Chatsworth. The subject lands are located at Part Lot 67,
Concession 1 SWTSR, geographic Township of Holland, now in the Township of Chatsworth. A
transmission line is proposed across the County’s lands, for a twenty-year timeframe, in order to
facilitate a proposed solar panel development. The driveway crossing could continue to remain
on-site, following the twenty-year agreement timeframe. The agreement was initially drawn up
by outside legal counsel and was reviewed by Grey County’s Director of Legal Services. The
proponent has agreed in principle to the terms. County staff are recommending approval of the
agreement.

Background and Discussion
County staff received a request to cross the County’s CP Rail Trail with a transmission line and
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a driveway from Egerton Solar Power LP (directed by its General Partner, MPI Fit 4 Inc.). There
will be no hydro poles installed on the County’s lands. The subject lands are located at Part Lot
67, Concession 1 SWTSR, geographic Township of Holland, now in the Township of
Chatsworth. Currently the subject property is bisected by the trail, with the northeast portion
gaining access off Highway 10, and the southwest portion needing access across the trail lands.
The overhead crossing of the trail by the transmission line, and driveway are required to permit
a solar development on both parts of the subject lands (i.e. northeast and southwest of the trail).
The subject lands are located southeast of Berkeley, on the south side of Highway 10. Map 1
below shows the subject lands and surrounding area, while Map 2 shows the proposed
transmission line and crossing.

Map 1: Airphoto of the Subject Property and Surrounding Lands
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Map 2: Proposed Transmission Line and Trail Crossing
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The draft agreement attached as a link to this report would protect the County from a liability
perspective, while still allowing for the multi-use CP Rail Trail to continue. The proponent will
also have the ability to access and maintain their transmission line and cross the trail with the
driveway. There are clauses in the agreement, and securities in place, to allow for the County
to rehabilitate the lands, should the proponent abandon the project in the future.
The Planning department has worked closely with staff from the Grey Sauble Conservation
Authority (GSCA), who are contracted to maintain the County’s trails. Advice has also been
sought from Clerk’s staff who have more technical knowledge on infrastructure crossings in this
regard.
The County maintains the CP Rail Trail, both as a multi-use trail and an infrastructure corridor
throughout the County. Other agreements are in place that permit sewers, gas lines, and
broadband fibre crossing or running along the trail. Allowing for this transmission line across the
trail would be consistent with the County’s objectives for the trail in this regard. The County also
has a number of instances where private driveways cross the trail.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
The agreement was drafted by outside legal counsel (Erroll Treslan, The Alliance Lawyers), and
reviewed by the Clerk’s department, and the Director of Legal Services. The draft agreement
contains the requisite indemnity and insurance clauses needed to adequately protect the
County’s interests, including minimizing any risk, while allowing for the continuation of the trail
use.

Financial and Resource Implications
There are no anticipated financial or staffing considerations associated with the proposed
agreement. The legal fees associated with this agreement, $1,500.00, will be paid by the
proponent, and $8,000.00 in securities will be collected to ensure the lands are rehabilitated
properly following the cessation of the agreement. The terms of the agreement also require the
proponent to carry $10,000,000.00 in commercial general liability insurance, and $5,000,000.00
in automotive liability insurance.

Relevant Consultation
☒ Internal: Clerk’s Department, Director of Legal Services, Grey Sauble Conservation Authority
contract staff
☒ External: Erroll Treslan, The Alliance Lawyers

Appendices and Attachments
Draft Transmission Line and Crossing Agreement
Respectfully submitted by,
Scott Taylor, Senior Planner
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